
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING – October 06, 2020       PAGE 1 

 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 
Electronic Meeting 

October 06, 2020 at 11:00 AM 
 

AGENDA 

The public will be able to view the meeting on San Juan County’s Facebook live and Youtube channel 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 

INVOCATION 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Public comments will be accepted through the following google meet link meet.google.com/ptc-paiv-

sdo or by phone at +1 716-427-8815 (PIN: 235 323 895#) There will be a three-minute time limit for each 

person wishing to comment. If you exceed that three-minute time limit the meeting controller will mute 

your line. 

CONSENT AGENDA (Routine Matters) Mack McDonald, San Juan County Administrator 

The Consent Agenda is a means of expediting the consideration of routine matters. If a Commissioner 

requests that items be removed from the consent agenda, those items are placed at the beginning of the 

regular agenda as a new business action item. Other than requests to remove items, a motion to approve 

the items on the consent agenda is not debatable. 

1. September 15, 2020 Minutes 

2. Week of 9/16 and 9/23 Check Registers 

3. Consideration of an Agreement with the San Juan County Public Health Department and the 

State of Utah Health Department for COVID-19 San Juan County - PPPHEA 2020 contract 

amendment.  

4. Consideration of an Agreement with the San Juan County Public Health Department and the 

State of Utah Health Department for 2019-2023 Healthy Living Through Environment, Policy 

and Improved Clinical Care (EPICC) Amendment 5 

5. Consideration of an Agreement with the San Juan County Public Health Department and the 

State of Utah Health Department for Local Health Dept WIC Program - San Juan Amendment 

2 

1



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING – October 06, 2020       PAGE 2 

6. Small Purchase Order Request for $12,500 to Phillips Electric Inc for the purchase of a 

generator for the landfill operations.  

7. Purchase of Communication Radios for the Public Safety Building of $12,999.31 using CARES 

Act Funds.  

RECOGNITIONS, PRESENTATIONS, AND INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

8. Bluff River Trail Support Letter, Nick Sandberg, San Juan County Public Lands Coordinator 

9. BLM presentation of the new Management Team and Tribal Liaison and an update from the 

Canyon Country District, Gary Torres, Canyon Country District Manager 

10. A request of support to extend U.S. Route 163 west to Interstate 15 near St. George and east to 

U.S. 160 in southwest Colorado to help out with tourism and commerce. Landry H.  

11. Discussion and request to appeal Centrally Assessed Tax Appeals made to the State of Utah 

Tax Commission by Elk Petroleum a request for an $18,000,000 reduction in value, Delhi 

Trading a $483,000 reduction and Holliday a $225,413 reduction in value. Kendall Laws, 

County Attorney   

BUSINESS/ACTION 

12. Public Hearing and Consideration of the private request for the County to vacate portions of D-

2475, D-0674, D-2765, D-2762, D-2764, D-2473 and D-2374, TJ Adair, Road Department 

Superintendent  

13. Consideration of an Agreement with the San Juan County Public Health Department and the 

State of Utah Health Department for Maternal and Child Health FFY 2021 – Kirk Benge, 

Public Health Director 

14. Consideration of a Recreate Responsibly Avalanche Memorandum of Understanding with Utah 

Avalanche Center using CARES Act Funds. Mack McDonald, Chief Administrative Officer 

15. RESOLUTION OF APPOINTMENT OF A SAN JUAN COUNTY REPRESENTATIVE AND 

AN ALTERNATE REPRESENTATIVE FOR THE UTAH COUNTIES INDEMNITY POOL 

ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP MEETING, Mack McDonald, Chief Administrative Officer 

16. A RESOLUTION RECOMMENDING AND ENCOURAGING THE NAVAJO NATION TO 

ALLOW SAN JUAN COUNTY TO MAINTAIN ALL “B” ROADS IN THE SAN JUAN, 

UTAH PORTIONS OF THE NAVAJO NATION AND AMEND THE CURRENT 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT TO PERFORM MAINTENANCE OF THESE 

ROADS, Mack McDonald, Chief Administrative Officer 

17. Consideration of a Support Letter authorizing the County Chief Administrative Officer to apply 

on behalf of the Historical Commission for $35,000 of funding from the Utah Navajo Trust 

Fund-Non-Chapter Funding for the replacement of the existing roof structure of the Historic 

Oljato Trading Post. Mack McDonald, Chief Administrative Officer.  

COMMISSION REPORTS 

2



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING – October 06, 2020       PAGE 3 

ADJOURNMENT 

*The Board of San Juan County Commissioners can call a closed meeting at any time during the Regular 

Session if necessary, for reasons permitted under UCA 52-4-205* 

All agenda items shall be considered as having potential Commission action components and may be 

completed by an electronic method **In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons 

needing auxiliary communicative aids and services for this meeting should contact the San Juan County 

Clerk’s Office: 117 South Main, Monticello or telephone 435-587-3223, giving reasonable notice** 

3



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING – September 15, 2020      PAGE 1 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 
Electronic Meeting 

September 15, 2020 at 11:00 AM 

MINUTES 

The public will be able to view the meeting on San Juan County’s Facebook live and YouTube channel. 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 

PRESENT 

Commission Chairman Kenneth Maryboy 

Commission Vice-Chair Willie Grayeyes 

Commissioner Bruce Adams 

INVOCATION 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Public comments will be accepted through the following google meet link: meet.google.com/puu-ztwy-

xpn o  by   one at            -   -      PIN:              #. There will be a 3-minute time limit for 

each person wishing to comment. If you exceed that three minute time limit the meeting controller will 

mute your line. Interruptions to the meeting could result in you being removed from the virtual meeting.   

CONSENT AGENDA (Routine Matters) Mack McDonald, San Juan County Administrator 

The Consent Agenda is a means of expediting the consideration of routine matters. If a Commissioner 

requests that items be removed from the consent agenda, those items are placed at the beginning of the 

regular agenda as a new business action item. Other than requests to remove items, a motion to approve 

the items on the consent agenda is not debatable. 

Mack walked through the consent agenda with the commission. Consent agenda items include 2020 

Planning Commission appointments of Cody Nielson and John Johnson, approval of the legal services 

portion of the Aging Contract, a contract with Home Health to provide services to senior citizens living 

within the county. 

Commissioner Grayeyes asked how often legal services and RN services were received in Navajo 

Mountain. Tammy Gallegos explained that RNs are in Navajo Mountain on a monthly basis providing 

health assessments on individuals serviced through the Aging Program. She also explained that any 

individual serviced can contact Utah Legal Services for advice. 

4

Item 1.



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING – September 15, 2020      PAGE 2 

A motion to approve the consent agenda was made by Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes, Seconded by 

Commissioner Adams. 

Voting Yea: Commission Chairman Maryboy, Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes, Commissioner 

Adams 

1. Check Registers

2. 09-01-2020 Meeting Minutes

3. Planning Commission Appointments for Cody Nielson for Blanding and John Johnston for La

Sal

4. Consideration of a Legal Services Aging Contract, Tammy Gallegos, Aging Services Director

5. Consideration of an Aging Contract For RN Services, Tammy Gallegos, Aging Services

Director

RECOGNITIONS, PRESENTATIONS, AND INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

6. Beer Tax Funds Fiscal Year 2020 Annual Report, Jason Torgerson, SJC Sheriff

       Sheriff Torgerson reported that the county received $32,124 in Beer Tax funds for the period from 

July 1, 2019 – June 30, 2020. He stated that the county applied for the funds and would use 

them for alcohol and substance abuse consignment costs. Sheriff Torgerson also explained that 

the commission needs to sign a report stating that the county will use the funds in the manner 

that he outlined to the commission. 

A motion to approve the commission signing the document to be sent to the State of Utah was                    
made by Commissioner Vice-Chair Grayeyes. Seconded by Commissioner Adams. 

Voting Yea: Commission Chairman Maryboy, Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes, Commissioner 

Adams. 

7. Discussion and Consideration of the 2nd round of CARES ACT Fund Distribution, Mack

McDonald, Chief Administrative Officer

       Mack presented the second round of CARES Act distribution to the county. He explained that the 

county would like to use the funds as outlined below: 

Economic Development / Visitor Services - $60,000 

The money would be used for tourism signage in the county to inform and educate visitors on 

dos and don’t of staying safe, keeping the county clean, protecting cultural sites, and leaving 

not trace. 

Public Lands - $20,000 

This money would be used for trail management and bringing trails back into good shape for 

use. 

Artisan Guild - $100,000 

This money would be used for art festivals as well as working with Trading Posts 

CARES Act grants - $150,000 

5

Item 1.



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING – September 15, 2020      PAGE 3 

This money would be used to provide grants to applying businesses who missed out on the 1
st

round of CARES Act money sent to the county. 

Communications and Building Prepardness - $30,173 

The money would used to purchase software programs to used to better prepare the county for 

pandemics. 

Feasibility study - $22,500 

These funds would be used for a feasiblity study to increase the size of the public safety 

building. Fund from the 1
st
 round of CARES Act money allocated to the study were $20,000

bringing the total funding for the study to $42,500. 

Ambulance and Communication - $50,000 

These funds would be used to sure up the budget for unanticipated transport of COVID 

patients. The county will also purchase radios to match the 800 Mhz system that the county is 

upgrading too. 

Gouldings Public Use Pump - $100,000 

These funds will be used to upgrade Gouldings’ private pump that they are using for public 

needs. 

Mack also spoke about road maintenance for the road in front of Gouldings and making a 

request to CIB for funds to complete the road maintenance. 

Reserves - 200K 

The funds would be put into the county reserves in anticipation of CARES Act rules being 

changed by U.S. legislative action. 

Motion made by Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes, Seconded by Commissioner Adams. 

Voting Yea: Commission Chairman Maryboy, Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes, 

Commissioner Adams 

8. Consideration of a Utah Commission on Aging Letter of Support, Tammy Gallegos, Aging

Services Director

Tammy requested that the county commission write a letter of support to Utah Legislation to

continue the Utah Commission on Aging because of the good work they do with the counties.

Motion made by Commissioner Adams, Seconded by Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes.

Voting Yea: Commission Chairman Maryboy, Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes,

Commissioner Adams

BUSINESS/ACTION 

9. Consideration of the Decker Crossing Agreement with Two Swipe Cattle Company, TJ Adair,

Road Department Director

6

Item 1.



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING – September 15, 2020      PAGE 4 

TJ stated that the cost to fix a deteriorating car bridge across Cottonwood Wash, which 

accesses Butler Wash, would be very costly. He explained that a more cost effective approach 

would be to change the county road on property owned by Two Swipe Cattle Company so that 

a lower land crossing could be used. He requested the commission chairman's signature on the 

agreement. 

Motion made by Commissioner Adams, Seconded by Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes. 

Voting Yea: Commission Chairman Maryboy, Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes, 

Commissioner Adams 

10. Consideration of an Outreach Education Agreement between San Juan Public Health

Department and the University of Utah for poison control education. Kirk Benge, Public Health

Director

Kirk explained that the county has entered into this same agreement with Utah Poison Control

each year to share poison control information and messaging at health fairs and on social media

sites. Kirk explained that the county receives $2,500 to provide the information and

recommended that the county renew the contract.

Motion made by Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes, Seconded by Commissioner Adams.

Voting Yea: Commission Chairman Maryboy, Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes,

Commissioner Adams

11. Consideration of a Coronavirus Prevention Messaging Grant Contract for Fiscal Year 2021

with San Juan Public Health and the State of Utah Department of Heritage & Arts, Kirk Benge,

Public Health Director

Kirk told the commission that Public Health had recently gotten approval for a grant up to an

amount of $15,000 to reimburse the county for messaging related to coronavirus prevention.

Motion made by Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes, Seconded by Commissioner Adams.

Voting Yea: Commission Chairman Maryboy, Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes,

Commissioner Adams

12. Purchase Order authorizing the Chamber Remodel by HKConsulting under State Contract

#MA2641 Job Order Contracting For Construction Services using Cares Act Funding, Mack

McDonald, Chief Administrative Officer

Mack requested that the commission a purchase order to remodel the commission chambers. He

explained that commission seating would be raised in order to create distance from the public.

Funds would also be used to upgrade the PA system. Mack also explained that appropriation of

CARES Act funds was $109,000 and the estimate from HK Consulting to complete the project

would be $95,000

Motion made by Commissioner Adams, Seconded by Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes.

Voting Yea: Commission Chairman Maryboy, Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes,

7

Item 1.



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING – September 15, 2020      PAGE 5 

Commissioner Adams 

13. Consideration of a contract for Ordinance Recodification Cost Proposal and Contract with

American Legal Publishing Corporation using CARES ACT Funds, Mack McDonald, Chief

Administrative Officer

Mack explained that the county does not currently have a way for the public to access county 

ordinances and policies. He presented for approval a contract with American Legal Publishing 

to codify and place the county’s ordinances and policies online for greater access. The base cost 

of the contract would be $8,925. 

Motion made by Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes, Seconded by Commissioner Adams. 

Voting Yea: Commission Chairman Maryboy, Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes, 

Commissioner Adams 

14. Consideration of a Lease Agreement with the Town of Bluff for the Lease of 2,275 Square Feet

within the Bluff Community Center for Senior Services located at 190 North 3rd East. Mack

McDonald, Chief Administrative Officer

Mack presented a lease agreement with the Town of Bluff to use 2,275 square ft of the Bluff 

Community Center for senior services. The lease amount would cost $450 per month. The term 

is for 5 years with an option to renew at that time. 

Commissioner Adams stated that the county built the building and then gave it to the Town of 

Bluff. 

Motion made by Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes, Seconded by Commissioner Adams. 

Voting Yea: Commission Chairman Maryboy, Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes, 

Commissioner Adams 

15. Consideration of an Agreement with AJC Architects to perform a Feasibility Study for the
Public Safety Building using CARES ACT FUNDS, Mack McDonald, Chief Administrative Officer

Mack presented for consideration, an agreement with AJC Architects to perform a feasibility on 

the public safety building. The cost proposal for the agreement would the in the amount of 

$42,500 and would be funded by CARES Act funds. Mack asked AJC to research the cost of 

constructing a public safety building remodel, then the county could go to CIB for a funds 

request. He also stated that this would help segregate individuals who may have contracted 

COVID and create isolation areas. Commissioner Adams also asked about the possibility of 

adding a 2
nd

 court room during a building remodel.

Motion made by Commissioner Adams, Seconded by Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes. 

Voting Yea: Commission Chairman Maryboy, Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes, 

Commissioner Adams 

8

Item 1.



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING – September 15, 2020      PAGE 6 

16. Consideration of a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between San Juan County and

Public Land Managers for the San Juan Strong Recreate Responsibly Campaign using CARES

ACT Funds, Natalie Randall, Economic Development Director

Natalie reviewed the San Juan Strong Promise campaign intended to build consumer

confidence in the county by recreating responsibly. She explained that Public Land

Management agencies have expressed interest in participating in the campaign which lead to

the creation of the proposed MOU.

Motion made by Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes, Seconded by Commissioner Adams.

Voting Yea: Commission Chairman Maryboy, Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes,

Commissioner Adams

BOARD OF EQUALIZATION 

17. Recommended Board of Equalization Adjustments, Greg Adams, County Assessor

Motion to go into Board of Equalization was made by Commissioner Adams, Seconded by

Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes.

Voting Yea: Commission Chairman Maryboy, Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes,

Commissioner Adams

County Assessor, Greg Adams, discussed this year’s Board of Equalization hearing. He talked

about increases in commercial property that were felt by business owners. He stated that most

of the recommendations by the hearing officer were cleaning up value issues brought by

property owners. Greg also explained that the program used by Economic Development to

identify nightly rentals was helpful in properly taxing entities.

Motion made by Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes, Seconded by Commissioner Adams.

Voting Yea: Commission Chairman Maryboy, Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes,

Commissioner Adams

Motion to leave BOE was made by Commissioner Adams, Seconded by Commission Vice-

Chair Grayeyes.

Voting Yea: Commission Chairman Maryboy, Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes,

Commissioner Adams

COMMISSION REPORTS 

Commissioner Maryboy – Commissioner Maryboy stated that several things are happening with the 

Navajo Nation. Commissioner Maryboy also mentioned that he would be attending a Navajo Utah 

Commission Meeting and a road meeting. 

Commissioner Grayeyes – Commissioner Grayeyes stated that he would be attending a conference in 

Midway. 

Commissioner Adams – Commissioner Adams had nothing to report 

9

Item 1.



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING – September 15, 2020      PAGE 7 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion to adjourn was made by Commissioner Adams, Seconded by Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes. 

Voting Yea: Commission Chairman Maryboy, Commission Vice-Chair Grayeyes, Commissioner 

Adams 

*The Board of San Juan County Commissioners can call a closed meeting at any time during the

Regular Session if necessary, for reasons permitted under UCA 52-4-205*

All agenda items shall be considered as having potential Commission action components and may be 

completed by an electronic method **In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons 

needing auxiliary communicative aids and services for this meeting should contact the San Juan County 

Clerk’s Office: 117 South Main, Monticello or telephone 435-587-3223, giving reasonable notice** 

10

Item 1.



11

Item 2.



12

Item 2.



13

Item 2.



 

 

 

COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

MEETING DATE: Month XX, 20XX 

SUBMITTED BY: Kirk Benge, Director, Public Health 

TITLE: Consideration of an Agreement with the San Juan County Public Health 

Department and the State of Utah Health Department for COVID-19 San 

Juan County - PPPHEA 2020 contract  

RECOMMENDATION: Recommend Sign Contract (it allows COVID response capacity to 

continue past 12/31/2020) 

 

SUMMARY 

“PPP” means Payroll Protection Program 

“HEA” means Healthcare Enhancement Act  

The general purpose of this contract is to provide COVID-19 contact tracing, infection prevention 

control and targeted testing. 

CONTRACT PERIOD:  07/01/2020 through 11/17/2022, unless terminated or extended by agreement in 

accordance with the terms and conditions of this contract. 

CONTRACT AMOUNT: The Utah Department of Health agrees to pay $97,744.00 in accordance with 

the provisions of this contract.  

This contract is funded with 100% federal funds, 0% state funds, and 0% other funds. 

HISTORY/PAST ACTION 

This is a new contract. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

These funds are NOT included in the current proposed budget. Next year’s Public Health budget would 

need to be increased by approximately $98,000 to allow these funds to be utilized effectively. 

14

Item 3.



Page 1 of 5 
 

                UTAH DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH CONTRACT 
                         PO Box 144003, Salt Lake City, Utah 84114 
                           288 North 1460 West, Salt Lake City, Utah 84116 

                        
 

 
 
2121709        212700330 
Department Log Number      State Contract Number 

 
 
1. CONTRACT NAME:  The name of this contract is COVID-19 San Juan County - PPPHEA 2020 

 
 

2. CONTRACTING PARTIES:  This contract is between the Utah Department of Health 
(DEPARTMENT) and the following CONTRACTOR: 

 

PAYMENT ADDRESS MAILING ADDRESS 
San Juan County 
735 S 200 W, Ste 2 
Blanding UT, 84511 
 
Vendor ID: 06866HL 
Commodity Code: 99999 

San Juan County 
735 S 200 W, Ste 2 
Blanding UT, 84511 

 

3. GENERAL PURPOSE OF CONTRACT:  The general purpose of this contract is to provide COVID-19 
contact tracing, infection prevention control and targeted testing. 

 
 
4. CONTRACT PERIOD:  The service period of this contract is 07/01/2020 through 11/17/2022, unless 

terminated or extended by agreement in accordance with the terms and conditions of this contract.  
 

 
5. CONTRACT AMOUNT:  The DEPARTMENT agrees to pay $97,744.00 in accordance with the 

provisions of this contract.  This contract is funded with 100% federal funds, 0% state funds, and 0% 
other funds.   
 

6. CONTRACT INQUIRIES:  Inquiries regarding this Contract shall be directed to the following 
individuals: 

 
    
CONTRACTOR   DEPARTMENT 
 
Kirk Benge 
(435) 359-0038 
kbenge@sanjuancounty.org 
 

   
Disease Control and Prevention 
PPPHEA ELC Grant 
Ginny Ambernac 
(801) 538-6289 
gambernac@utah.gov 

 

7. SUB – RECIPIENT INFORMATION: 
 

15

Item 3.



Page 2 of 5 
 

DUNS: 079815014  Indirect Cost Rate: 0%  
 

Federal Program Name: Epidemiology and 
Laboratory Capacity for 
Infectious Diseases 
(ELC) 

Award Number: 6 NU50CK000536-01-07 

Name of Federal Awarding 
Agency: 

Department of Health 
and Human Services 

Federal Award 
Identification Number: 

NU50CK000536 

CFDA Title: Epidemiology and 
Laboratory Capacity for 
Infectious Diseases 
(ELC) 

Federal Award Date: 5/18/2020 

CFDA Number: 93.323 Funding Amount: $97744.00 
    
8. REFERENCE TO ATTACHMENTS INCLUDED AS PART OF THIS CONTRACT: 

 

Attachment A: Special Provisions 

 
9. DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED INTO THIS CONTRACT BY REFERENCE BUT NOT ATTACHED: 

A. All other governmental laws, regulations, or actions applicable to services provided herein. 
B. All Assurances and all responses to bids as provided by the CONTRACTOR. 
C. Utah Department of Health General Provisions and Business Associates Agreement currently in 

effect until 6/30/2023. 
 

 
10. This contract, its attachments, and all documents incorporated by reference constitute the entire 

agreement between the parties and supersedes all prior written or oral agreements between the 
parties relating to the subject matter of this contract. 

 

 

  

16

Item 3.



Page 3 of 5 
 

Contract with Utah Department of Health and San Juan County, Log # 2121709 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties enter into this agreement. 

 

CONTRACTOR      STATE   

 

 

 

By: ______________________    ________   By: ________________________    ________ 

Kenneth Maryboy Date Shari A. Watkins, C.P.A. Date 
County Commission Chair  Director, Office Fiscal Operations  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

  

17

Item 3.



Page 4 of 5 
 

Attachment A: Special Provisions 

COVID-19 San Juan County – PPPHEA 2020 

Effective Date: July 1, 2020 

 

I. DEFINITIONS: 
A. “HEA” means Healthcare Enhancement Act. 
B. “PPP” means Payroll Protection Program. 
C. “Quarter” means each 90-day period starting January 1. 
D. “Subrecipient” means Contractor. 

 

II. FUNDING:  
A. Total funding is $97,744.00. 

1. $97,744.00 for the period July 1, 2020 to November 17, 2022. 
B. This is a Cost Reimbursement contract. The DEPARTMENT agrees to reimburse 

the SUBRECIPIENT up to the maximum amount of the contract for expenditures 
made by the SUBRECIPIENT directly related to the performance of this contract. 

C. The Federal funds provided under this agreement are from the Federal Program 
and award as recorded on the Contract Pages. 

D. Pass-through Agency: Utah Department of Health. 
E. Number assigned by the Pass-through Agency: State Contract Number, as 

recorded on Page 1 of the Contract. 
 

III. INVOICING: 
A. In addition to the General Provisions of the contract the SUBRECIPIENT shall 

include one column for each funding source in the Monthly Expenditure Report.  
1. PPPHEA - Contact tracing. 
2. PPPHEA - Infection, Prevention and Control 
3. PPPHEA - Targeted testing. 

B. In addition to the General Provisions of the contract the SUBRECIPIENT shall 
submit the July invoice no later than August 15. 

 

IV. RESPONSIBILITIES OF SUBRECIPIENT: 
A. For all activities the SUBRECIPIENT shall: 

1. Attend monthly DEPARTMENT coordination meetings. 
B. For contact tracing the SUBRECIPIENT shall: 

1. Maintain a minimum of one (1) FTE temporary contract tracing employees 
to work as investigators and contact tracers for the duration of the 
contract. 
a) This is in conjunction with other contact tracing contracts with the 

Department of Health. 
2. Complete the case investigation, preferably within 24 hours after 

receiving the lab result. 
a) Complete all minimum data elements in UT-NEDSS, when 

available. 
b) Enter the “optimal” data elements into UT-NEDSS at the 

SUBRECIPIENT’s discretion. 

18

Item 3.



Page 5 of 5 
 

3. Complete contact tracing, preferably within 24 hours after completing the 
case investigation. 

4. Route cases to DEPARTMENT at the SUBRECIPIENT’s discretion. 
C. For infection, prevention and control the SUBRECIPIENT shall: 

1. Provide activities to support long term care facilities investigation in 
coordination with DEPARTMENT. 

D. For targeted testing the SUBRECIPIENT shall: 
1. Propose locations to deploy the rapid testing machines. 

a) Priority given to: geographic clusters of infectious disease, 
worksites, and healthcare settings. 

 

V. REPORTS: 
A. For contact tracing, epidemiology staff and targeted testing the SUBRECIPIENT 

shall: 
1. Provide a report each quarter, no later than the 15th day of the month after 

the quarter ends. 
a) Include the number of contact tracers hired, trained and deployed. 

B. For infection, prevention and control the SUBRECIPIENT shall: 
1. Provide a report for each quarter, no later than the 15th day of the month 

after the quarter ends. 
a) Include the activities provided. 

 

VI. PROGRAM CONTACT: 
A. The day to day operations and dispute contact is Ginny Ambrenac, 

gambrenac@utah.gov, (801) 538-6289. 
 

VII. DISPUTE RESOLUTION: 
A. If any dispute arises between the parties during the activities described by this 

Contract, the parties agree to seek a resolution through open communication and 
dialogue. 

B. Either party may request a conference to resolve a disputed issue (consistent 
with Utah Admin. Code R380-10-3, which supports dispute resolution at the 
lowest level possible). 

C. If a resolution cannot be reached, DEPARTMENT may bring supervisory 
personnel into the process to facilitate resolving issues and achieving agreement. 

D. The provisions in Section B. and C. are not mandatory. 
E. If a dispute is not resolved within 30 days of DEPARTMENT decision, 

DEPARTMENT’s decision is considered the “initial agency determination,” as 
defined by Utah Admin. Code R380-10-2(3). 

F. These provisions do not preclude or affect the provisions, rights, limitations, or 
timelines for appealing DEPARTMENT actions that are provided or required by 
Utah Code §§ 26-23-2, 26-1-4.1 or 26-1-7.1, Utah Admin. Code R380-10, or the 
Utah Administrative Procedures Act (Utah Code § 63G-4). 

G. In the event of any conflict between the Dispute Resolution provisions in the 
Special Provisions of this Contract with applicable law or rules, the provisions of 
the applicable law or rules shall control. 

19

Item 3.



 

 

 

COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

MEETING DATE: Month XX, 20XX 

SUBMITTED BY: Kirk Benge, Director, Public Health 

TITLE: Consideration of an Agreement with the San Juan County Public Health 

Department and the State of Utah Health Department for 2019-2023 

Healthy Living Through Environment, Policy and Improved Clinical Care 

(EPICC) amendment 5 

RECOMMENDATION: Recommend Sign Contract  

 

SUMMARY 

This is an amendment to an existing contract.  

The general purpose of this contract is to address physical activity, nutrition, obesity, diabetes and heart 

disease in San Juan County. 

PURPOSE OF CONTRACT AMENDMENT: To add funding for FY21, update funding dates for FY21, 

adjust coding, and update contract activities in special provisions. 

SUMMARY OF CHANGES TO CONTRACT: Update activities for PBG, 1807 and 1817 federal 

grants. Adding funding of $17,764.14 to PBG federal grant for FY21. Adding funding of $9,174.12 to 

1807 federal grant for FY21. Adding funding of $27,200.00 to 1817 federal grant for FY21. New total 

contract amount is $186,894.78. 

HISTORY/PAST ACTION 

We have received EPICC funding since 2015. This contract has been renewed annually since 2015. 

 Oct 2018 - signed 5 year agreement. $62,298.26 

 Dec 2018 - Amendment 1 - Amended special provisions 

 Jun 2019 -  Amendment 2 - Modified funding amounts  

 Oct 2019 - Amendment 3 - Added funding for FY20, modified dates. modified special provisions. 

 Jun 2020 - Amendment 4 - Added funding of $8,160. New amount  at $132,756.52. Updated activities. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

These funds are included in the current proposed budget.  

20

Item 4.



Page 1 of 9 
 

                UTAH DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH CONTRACT 
        AMENDMENT 
                         PO Box 144003, Salt Lake City, Utah 84114 
                           288 North 1460 West, Salt Lake City, Utah 84116 

                        
 
 

 
    1931112              192700359 
Department Log Number      State Contract Number 
 
 
1. CONTRACT NAME:  The name of this contract is 2019-2023 EPICC- San Juan Health Department 

Amendment 5. 
 
 

2. CONTRACTING PARTIES:  This contract amendment is between the Utah Department of Health 
(DEPARTMENT) and San Juan County (CONTRACTOR). 
 
  

3. PURPOSE OF CONTRACT AMENDMENT:  To add funding for FY21, update funding dates for 
FY21, adjust coding, and update contract activities in special provisions. 
 
 

4. CHANGES TO CONTRACT: 
 

1. Adding funding of $17,764.14 to PBG federal grant for FY21.  Adding funding of $9,174.12 to 

1807 federal grant for FY21.  Adding funding of $27,200.00 to 1817 federal grant for FY21.  New 

total contract amount is $186,894.78. 

2. Update activities for PBG, 1807 and 1817 federal grants. 

DUNS: 079815014  Indirect Cost Rate: 0%  
 

Add    
Federal Program Name: DHHS-PHS-CDC Award Number: NB01OT009323-01-00 
Name of Federal Awarding 
Agency: 

Centers for Disease 
Control and Prevention 

Federal Award 
Identification Number: 

NB01OT009323 

CFDA Title: PREVENTION BLOCK 
GRANT 

Federal Award Date: 8/7/2020 

CFDA Number: 93.991 Funding Amount: $17764.14 
 

Add    
Federal Program Name: DHHS-PHS-CDC Award Number: 5 NU58DP006496-3-00 
Name of Federal Awarding 
Agency: 

Centers for Disease 
Control and Prevention 

Federal Award 
Identification Number: 

5 NU58DP006496 

CFDA Title: UTAH STATE 
PHYSICAL ACTIVITY 
AND NUTRITION 
PROGRAM 

Federal Award Date: 7/10/2020 

CFDA Number: 93.439 Funding Amount: $9174.12 

21

Item 4.



Page 2 of 9 
 

 

Add    
Federal Program Name: DHHS-PHS-CDC Award Number: 5 NU58DP006609-03-00 
Name of Federal Awarding 
Agency: 

Centers for Disease 
Control and Prevention 

Federal Award 
Identification Number: 

5 NU58DP006609 

CFDA Title: INNOVATIVE STATE 
AND LOCAL PUBLIC 
HEALTH STRATEGIES 
TO PREVENT AND 
MANAGE DIABETES 
AND HEART DISEASE 
AND STROKE 

Federal Award Date: 6/21/2020 

CFDA Number: 93.435 Funding Amount: $13600.00 
 

Add    
Federal Program Name: DHHS-PHS-CDC Award Number: 5 NU58DP006609-03-00 
Name of Federal Awarding 
Agency: 

Centers for Disease 
Control and Prevention 

Federal Award 
Identification Number: 

5 NU58DP006609 

CFDA Title: INNOVATIVE STATE 
AND LOCAL PUBLIC 
HEALTH STRATEGIES 
TO PREVENT AND 
MANAGE DIABETES 
AND HEART DISEASE 
AND STROKE 

Federal Award Date: 6/21/2020 

CFDA Number: 93.435 Funding Amount: $13600.00 
 

All other conditions and terms in the original contract and previous amendments remain the same. 
 
 
5. EFFECTIVE DATE OF AMENDMENT: This amendment is effective 09/30/2020 

 
 

6. DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED INTO THIS CONTRACT BY REFERENCE BUT NOT ATTACHED: 
A. All other governmental laws, regulations, or actions applicable to services provided herein. 
B. All Assurances and all responses to bids as provided by the CONTRACTOR. 
C. Utah Department of Health General Provisions and Business Associate Agreement currently in 

effect until 6/30/2023. 
 

 
 
7. This contract, its attachments, and all documents incorporated by reference constitute the entire 

agreement between the parties and supersedes all prior written or oral agreements between the 
parties relating to the subject matter of this contract. 

  

22

Item 4.



Page 3 of 9 
 

Contract with Utah Department of Health and San Juan County, Log # 1931112 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties enter into this agreement. 

 

CONTRACTOR      STATE   

 

 

 

By: ______________________    ________   By: ________________________    ________ 

Kenneth Maryboy Date Shari A. Watkins, C.P.A. Date 
County Commission Chair  Director, Office Fiscal Operations  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

  

23

Item 4.



Page 4 of 9 
 

   

Attachment A - Special Provisions – 9/1/2020 
San Juan County Health Department FY21 PBG-1807-1815-1817 

Healthy Living Through Environment, Policy and Improved Clinical Care (EPICC) 
 

 

I. DEFINITIONS 

 

II. FUNDING 
 

A. The source of funding provided for this agreement is from the following federal programs 
and awards: 

 
    

   Total amount funded with PHHS Block Grant (4323)          $17,764.14 

 

CFDA number 93.991 

CFDA title Preventive Health and Health Services Block Grant 

Award name Preventive Health Services Block Grant 

Award number NB01OT009323-01-00 

Award date August 7, 2020 

Name of Federal Agency DHHS-PHS-CDC 

Pass through Agency State of Utah, Department of Health 

 

  Total amount funded with CDC 1807 Grant (4287)               $9,174.12 

 

CFDA number 93.439 

CFDA title Assistance Programs for Chronic Disease Prevention and Control 

Award name State Physical Activity and Nutrition Program 

Award number 5 NU58DP006496-3-00 

Award date July 10, 2020 

Name of Federal Agency DHHS-PHS-CDC 

Pass through Agency State of Utah, Department of Health 

    

  Total amount funded with CDC 1815 Grant (4230)             $8,160.00 

 

DEPARTMENT Utah Department of Health—EPICC Program 

EXECUTIVE ULACHES A small group of Local Health Officers and Local Health Promotion 
Directors 

GOVERNANCE Representatives of State and Local Health Department Leadership who 
meet to give approval to UDOH program staff to apply for federal grant 
funding and make decisions on allocation to local health departments 

SUB-RECIPIENT Local Health Department 

ULACHES Utah Local Association of Certified Health Education Specialists—Local 
Health Department Health Promotion Directors 

24

Item 4.



Page 5 of 9 
 

CFDA number 93.426 

CFDA title Interventions in Utah that will improve outcomes for the residents 
of Utah specific to diabetes and hypertension and related risk 
factors 

Award name Improving the Health of Americans Through Prevention and 
Management of Diabetes and Heart Disease and Stroke-
Financed in part by 2018 Prevention and Public Health 

Award number 5 NU58DP006512-03-00 

Award date May 13, 2020 

Name of Federal Agency DHHS-PHS-CDC 

Pass through Agency State of Utah, Department of Health 

 

  Total amount funded with CDC 1817 Grant (4260)          $27,200.00 

 

CFDA number 93.435 

CFDA title Innovation Awards—Diabetes, Heart Disease and Stroke 

Award name Innovative State and Local Public Health Strategies to Prevent 
and Manage Diabetes and Heart Disease and Stroke 

Award number 5 NU58DP006609-03-00 

Award date June 21, 2020 

Name of Federal Agency DHHS-PHS-CDC 

Pass through Agency State of Utah, Department of Health 

 

B. DUNS Number:  079815014 
C. Indirect Cost Rate:  [0%] 
D. As set forth in the funding periods below, the DEPARTMENT agrees to reimburse the 

SUB-RECIPIENT up to the maximum of $62,298.26 for expenditures made by the SUB-
RECIPIENT directly related to this project as described in Section III Services A - D. 

i. Allowable expenditures include wages and salaries, fringe benefits, supplies, 
travel, subcontract costs, consultants and current expense. 

ii. The SUB-RECIPIENT will report monthly expenditures, using a separate line 
item for each allocation coding as shown in the table below, on the Monthly 
Expenditure Report (MER) submitted to the DEPARTMENT. 

E. By March 1, 2021 expenditures will be reviewed jointly by the DEPARTMENT and the 
SUB-RECIPIENT to determine if at least 35% of funds have been expended on activities 
as allocated. 

i. If SUB-RECIPIENT is below 35% expenditures a written plan of action will be 
submitted to ensure utilization of remaining funds for contract and funding 
purposes. 

ii. Over a three-year time period, if SUB-RECIPIENT consistently underspends 
funds, the DEPARTMENT will work with Executive ULACHES and Governance 
to determine appropriate reallocation of funds. 

F. Funds can only be used for services provided up to the maximum amounts listed in the 
tables in the Services section below: 
 

III. SERVICES  
  

Amount Shall be reimbursed by the 
DEPARTMENT for 

expenditures under: 

Funds may be 
expended between: 

Allocation 
Coding 

Up to $17,764.14 CDC Prevention Block Grant September 30, 2020 and 
September 29, 2021 

4323/BLK21/PNO 

25

Item 4.



Page 6 of 9 
 

 

A. The SUB-RECIPIENT shall conduct the following activities related to the PBG 
grant: 

i. Strategy 1—Build Capacity to Address Overall Social Determinants of 
Health (SDoH) 

1. Community Health Needs Assessment Collaborative 
a. Participate in the Community Health Needs Assessment 

(CHNA) Collaborative and/or conduct a CHNA to include 
SDOH measures 

ii. Strategy 2—Build Capacity to Address SDoH – Food Insecurity 
1. Convene Community Partners Working on Food Insecurity 

a. Identify and convene community partners working on food 
insecurity to learn what efforts are underway in local 
communities 

iii. Strategy 3—Build Community Partnerships 
1. Community Coalitions 

a. Actively participate and support community coalitions 
related to healthy living 

iv. Strategy 4—Create Healthy Environments in School Settings 
1. Safe Routes to School 

a. Increase Physical Activity at School through the Safe 
Routes to School Program and SR2S policies and/or 
maps, etc. 

2. Build Partnerships to Support Local Needs 
a. Build partnerships with education leaders to support local 

needs 
v. Strategy 5—Create Healthy Environments in Worksite Settings 

1. Worksite ScoreCard (LHD) 
a. Complete the CDC Worksite ScoreCard at your local 

health department on your anniversary date 
b. Identify and create an action plan 

 

Amount Shall be reimbursed by 
the DEPARTMENT for 
expenditures under: 

Funds may be 
expended between: 

Allocation Coding 

Up to $9,174.12 CDC 1807 Grant 
(Physical Activity and 
Nutrition) 

September 30, 2020 and 
September 29, 2021 

4287/PN21 

 

B. The SUB-RECIPIENT shall conduct the following activities related to the 1807 
grant: 

i. Strategy 1—Implement Food Service Guidelines (FSG) 
1. Eat Well Utah 

a. In partnership with EPICC staff, provide technical 
assistance and recommendations for Eat Well 
implementation to one worksite and community venue 
based on opportunities identified in the environment scan 
and patron needs assessments 

2. Eat Well Utah Award 

26

Item 4.



Page 7 of 9 
 

a. Promote the Eat Well Utah Award 
ii. Strategy 2—Increase Physical Activity Opportunities 

1. Transportation and Planning Coalitions 
a. Participate in local or regional transportation and planning 

coalitions/committees 
 

Amount Shall be reimbursed 
by the 
DEPARTMENT for 
expenditures under: 

Funds may be 
expended between: 

Allocation Coding 

Up to $4,080.00 CDC 1815 Grant  
(Category A, 
Diabetes) 

June 30, 2020 and  
June 29, 2021 

4230/HRT21/DIAB 

Up to $4,080.00 CDC 1815 Grant  
(Category B, Heart 
Disease) 

June 30, 2020 and  
June 29, 2021 

4230/HRT21/HDST 

 

C. The SUB-RECIPIENT shall conduct the following activities related to the 1815 
grant: 

i. Strategy 1—Collaborate with payers and relevant public and private 
sector organizations within the state to expand the availability of the 
National DPP for one or more of the following groups: Medicaid 
beneficiaries; state/ public employees; employees of private sector 
organizations. 

1. National DPP Coverage 
a. Use resources from the Coverage Toolkit to facilitate 

conversations with one new/ Y2 worksites about offering 
coverage of the National DPP for their employees. -State 
will offer refresher Coverage Toolkit Webinar 

b. Encourage worksites to: 
i. Offer the National DPP LCP 
ii. Refer to existing National DPP LCPs 
iii. Develop policy to provide payment of National DPP 

participation for employees 
iv. Promote Intermountain’s “Weigh to Health” National 

DPP LCP to Associated Food Stores, Inc. 
companies 

ii. Strategy 2—Increase enrollment in CDC-recognized lifestyle change 
programs 

1. National DPP Enrollment 
a. Promote and support existing and new National DPPs in 

your area; to include: TA, promotion and training on 
Compass, and facilitate partnerships among National 
DPPs 

iii. Strategy 3—Facilitate self-measured blood pressure monitoring 
1. Implement Self-Monitoring Blood Pressure (SMBP) Programs 

a. Work with one clinic to implement self-monitoring blood 
pressure programs 
 

Amount Shall be reimbursed Funds may be Allocation Coding 

27

Item 4.



Page 8 of 9 
 

by the DEPARTMENT 
for expenditures 
under: 

expended between: 

Up to $13,600.00 CDC 1817 Grant  
(Category A, Diabetes) 

September 30, 2020 and 
September 29, 2021 

4260/DSM21/DIAB 

Up to $13,600.00 CDC 1817 Grant  
(Category B, CVD) 

September 30, 2020 and 
September 29, 2021 

4260/DSM21/HDST 

 

D. The SUB-RECIPIENT shall conduct the following activities related to the 1817 
grant: 

i. Strategy 1—Explore and test innovative ways to eliminate barriers to 
participation and retention in CDC recognized lifestyle change programs 
for type 2 diabetes prevention and/or ADA recognized/AADE-accredited 
diabetes self-management education and support (DSMES*) programs 
for diabetes management among high burden populations. Promote the 
continuing education module on diabetes risk and self-management for 
low-income WIC participants. 

1. Clinics; Educate Providers to Refer into DSMES 
a. Work with one clinic to educate providers on how to refer 

patients with diabetes to DSMES, how to locate DSMES 
programs, and the 4 Critical Times to refer to DSME, as 
well as implement referral and follow up processes to 
DSMES in clinics and raise awareness of DSMES among 
healthcare providers 

2. The Association of Diabetes Care & Education Specialist 
(ADCES)/American Diabetes Association (ADA); Increase 
referrals to, participate in retention of DSMES; Marketing and 
Promoting 

a. Work with one local ADCES accredited/ADA recognized 
DSMES providers to increase referrals to, participation in, 
and retention of DSMES through facilitating referring 
provider/clinic connections with DSMES programs, 
disseminating marketing materials, and promoting DSMES 
to persons with diabetes 

3. Non-Traditional; Satellite Sites 
a. Work with at least one non-traditional location identified in 

Y2 and partner with ADCES accredited/ADA recognized 
DSMES programs to begin implementing satellite sites for 
offering DSMES.  For areas where a non-traditional 
location was not identified in Y2, work to assess 
community need and identify 1-2 non-traditional locations 
that could serve as a satellite site for a current DSMES 
program. 

ii. Strategy 2—Promote evidence-based quality measures 
1. Stratify Standard Quality Measures 

a. Work with one clinic to stratify quality measures by high 
burden subpopulations 

2. Implement Clinic Interventions to Reduce Disparities 

28

Item 4.



Page 9 of 9 
 

a. Implement clinical interventions with one clinic to identify 
and/or address barriers to achieving blood pressure (BP) 
control 
 

IV. RESPONSIBILITY OF THE SUB-RECIPIENT 
 
A. The SUB-RECIPIENT shall conform to the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 

including associated regulations and policies and Civil Rights laws, regulations and 
policies, which includes providing reasonable accommodations to those with disabilities 
and displaying required notices of rights. 

B. The SUB-RECIPEINT staff shall participate in at least (1) site visit with the 
DEPARTMENT staff. 

C. The SUB-RECIPEINT staff will attend the annual EPICC Forum. 
D. The SUB-RECIPEINT staff will attend the Healthy Living and Chronic Conditions Disease 

Management (CCDM) workgroups. 
E. The SUB-RECIPIENT shall provide detailed reports on progress and results by the 

following dates: 
i. January 15, 2021 
ii. April 15, 2021  
iii. July 15, 2021 
iv. October 15, 2021 

F. The SUB-RECIPIENT shall use Catalyst to document the progress made on the activities 
to the DEPARTMENT’s Program Liaison. The SUB-RECIPIENT shall ensure that 
necessary information is entered into all required reporting fields. 

G. The SUB-RECIPIENT shall provide progress, results and performance measure data as 
outlined in Catalyst.  

H. The DEPARTMENT will provide additional evaluation criteria as agreed upon by EPICC 
and ULACHES. 
 

V. RESPONSIBILITY OF DEPARTMENT 
 
A. The DEPARTMENT agrees to provide written confirmation of receipt of reports within 10 

working days 
B. The DEPARTMENT agrees to provide written feedback on results or progress within 20 

working days of receipt of quarterly progress and end-year reports. 
i. The SUB-RECIPIENT agrees to reply to feedback, in the space provided in 

Catalyst, within 10 working days of receipt of DEPARTMENT feedback. 
C. The DEPARTMENT agrees to provide training and technical assistance as requested or 

needed.   
D. The DEPARTMENT agrees to conduct one site visit during the contract period at 

mutually agreed upon times with a jointly developed agenda during contract period.  
E. The DEPARTMENT agrees to communicate annual spending to the SUB-RECIPENT. 

 

 
 

29

Item 4.



 

 

 

COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

MEETING DATE: Month XX, 20XX 

SUBMITTED BY: Kirk Benge, Director, Public Health 

TITLE: Consideration of an Agreement with the San Juan County Public Health 

Department and the State of Utah Health Department for Local Health 

Dept WIC Program - San Juan Amendment 2 

RECOMMENDATION: Recommend Sign Contract 

 

SUMMARY 

The purpose of this amendment is to add funding for Year 2, (Federal Fiscal Year 2021) 

The original amount was $132,817. The funding amount will be increased by $129,120 in federal funds 

for this upcoming fiscal year. 

Special Provisions, effective 10/1/2020, is replacing Attachment A – Special Provisions, which was 

effective 10/1/2019. 

HISTORY/PAST ACTION 

This is a continuation of the WIC contract which has been renewed annually between the Utah Dept of 

Health and San Juan Public Health since 2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

These funds are included in the current proposed budget. 

30

Item 5.



Page 1 of 8 
 

                UTAH DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH CONTRACT 
        AMENDMENT 
                         PO Box 144003, Salt Lake City, Utah 84114 
                           288 North 1460 West, Salt Lake City, Utah 84116 

                        
 
 

 
    2026713              202700369 
Department Log Number      State Contract Number 
 
 
1. CONTRACT NAME:  The name of this contract is Local Health Dept WIC Program - San Juan 

Amendment 2. 
 
 

2. CONTRACTING PARTIES:  This contract amendment is between the Utah Department of Health 
(DEPARTMENT) and San Juan County (CONTRACTOR). 
 
  

3. PURPOSE OF CONTRACT AMENDMENT:  The purpose of this amendment is to add funding for 
Year 2, Federal Fiscal Year 2021. 
 
 

4. CHANGES TO CONTRACT: 
 

1. The contract amount is being changed. The original amount was $132,817. The funding 

amount will be increased by $129,120 in federal funds. New total funding is $261,937. 

2. Attachment A Special Provisions, effective 10/1/2020, is replacing Attachment A - Special 

Provisions, which was effective 10/1/2019. 

DUNS: 079815014  Indirect Cost Rate: 0%  
 

Add    
Federal Program Name: Women Infants & 

Children 
Award Number: 6UT700709 

Name of Federal Awarding 
Agency: 

USDA - Food and 
Nutrition Service 

Federal Award 
Identification Number: 

216UT709W1003 

CFDA Title: SPECIAL 
SUPPLEMENTAL 
NUTRITION 
PROGRAM FOR 
WOMEN, INFANTS, & 
CHILDREN 

Federal Award Date: 10/1/2020 

CFDA Number: 10.557 Funding Amount: $8800 
 

Add    
Federal Program Name: Women Infants & 

Children 
Award Number: 6UT700709 

Name of Federal Awarding 
Agency: 

USDA - Food and 
Nutrition Service 

Federal Award 
Identification Number: 

216UT709W1003 

31

Item 5.



Page 2 of 8 
 

CFDA Title: SPECIAL 
SUPPLEMENTAL 
NUTRITION 
PROGRAM FOR 
WOMEN, INFANTS, & 
CHILDREN 

Federal Award Date: 10/1/2020 

CFDA Number: 10.557 Funding Amount: $11000 
 

Add    
Federal Program Name: Women Infants & 

Children 
Award Number: 6UT700709 

Name of Federal Awarding 
Agency: 

USDA - Food and 
Nutrition Service 

Federal Award 
Identification Number: 

216UT709W1003 

CFDA Title: SPECIAL 
SUPPLEMENTAL 
NUTRITION 
PROGRAM FOR 
WOMEN, INFANTS, & 
CHILDREN 

Federal Award Date: 10/1/2020 

CFDA Number: 10.557 Funding Amount: $56731 
 

Add    
Federal Program Name: Women Infants & 

Children 
Award Number: 6UT700709 

Name of Federal Awarding 
Agency: 

USDA - Food and 
Nutrition Service 

Federal Award 
Identification Number: 

216UT709W1003 

CFDA Title: SPECIAL 
SUPPLEMENTAL 
NUTRITION 
PROGRAM FOR 
WOMEN, INFANTS, & 
CHILDREN 

Federal Award Date: 10/1/2020 

CFDA Number: 10.557 Funding Amount: $7700 
 

Add    
Federal Program Name: Women Infants & 

Children 
Award Number: 6UT700709 

Name of Federal Awarding 
Agency: 

USDA - Food and 
Nutrition Service 

Federal Award 
Identification Number: 

216UT709W1003 

CFDA Title: SPECIAL 
SUPPLEMENTAL 
NUTRITION 
PROGRAM FOR 
WOMEN, INFANTS, & 
CHILDREN 

Federal Award Date: 10/1/2020 

CFDA Number: 10.557 Funding Amount: $41400 
 

Add    
Federal Program Name: Women Infants & 

Children 
Award Number: 6UT700809 

32

Item 5.



Page 3 of 8 
 

Name of Federal Awarding 
Agency: 

USDA - Food and 
Nutrition Service 

Federal Award 
Identification Number: 

206UT809W5003 

CFDA Title: SPECIAL 
SUPPLEMENTAL 
NUTRITION 
PROGRAM FOR 
WOMEN, INFANTS, & 
CHILDREN 

Federal Award Date: 2/18/2020 

CFDA Number: 10.557 Funding Amount: $3489 
 

All other conditions and terms in the original contract and previous amendments remain the same. 
 
 
5. EFFECTIVE DATE OF AMENDMENT: This amendment is effective 10/01/2020 

 
 

6. DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED INTO THIS CONTRACT BY REFERENCE BUT NOT ATTACHED: 
A. All other governmental laws, regulations, or actions applicable to services provided herein. 
B. All Assurances and all responses to bids as provided by the CONTRACTOR. 
C. Utah Department of Health General Provisions and Business Associate Agreement currently in 

effect until 6/30/2023. 
 

 
 
7. This contract, its attachments, and all documents incorporated by reference constitute the entire 

agreement between the parties and supersedes all prior written or oral agreements between the 
parties relating to the subject matter of this contract. 

  

33

Item 5.



Page 4 of 8 
 

Contract with Utah Department of Health and San Juan County, Log # 2026713 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties enter into this agreement. 

 

CONTRACTOR      STATE   

 

 

 

By: ______________________    ________   By: ________________________    ________ 

Kenneth Maryboy Date Shari A. Watkins, C.P.A. Date 
County Commission Chair  Director, Office Fiscal Operations  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

  

34

Item 5.



Page 5 of 8 
 

ATTACHMENT A 

WIC Program Special Provisions 

For San Juan County Health Department 

 

I. FUNDING AND PAYMENTS 

A. Nutrition Service Administration (NSA) - The DEPARTMENT shall reimburse the 

CONTRACTOR up to $125,631 for Federal Fiscal Year 2021 for WIC operational activities (as 

submitted on the monthly expense report) by the CONTRACTOR directly related to the 

program. This agreement will be amended to add funding each fiscal year. 

B. Peer Counseling (PC) - The DEPARTMENT shall reimburse the CONTRACTOR up to 

$3,489 for Federal Fiscal Year 2021 for Peer Counseling (PC) activities (as submitted on the 

monthly expense report). NSA funding can be used to supplement the budget in this 

category. This agreement will be amended to add funding each fiscal year. 

C. The CONTRACTOR shall report the costs under Sections I.A. and I.B. to the DEPARTMENT 

based on the following categories: 

1. Breastfeeding Promotion - NSA 

2. Nutrition Education - NSA 

3. Administration - NSA 

4. Client Services - NSA 

5. Technology Services - NSA 

6. Peer Counseling - PC 

D. The CONTRACTOR shall spend at least one-sixth (17%) of the reimbursement amount under 

Section I.A. on Nutrition Education. 

E. Paper Food Vouchers and WIC Food Benefits issued to eWIC cards provided under the WIC 

Program are considered Federal Financial   Assistance that must be reported in the LHD 

Single Audit Report. The Voucher Redeemed Amount for the calendar year will be made 

available the following January by the DEPARTMENT. 

II. PROVISIONS INCORPORATED INTO THIS AGREEMENT BY REFERENCE, BUT NOT 

ATTACHED: 

A. Utah Department of Health WIC Program Policy and Procedures (P&P) manual, current 

version as amended annually. 

B. All other governmental laws, rules, regulations, or actions applicable to services provided 

herein. 

III. SERVICES 

A. The CONTRACTOR shall furnish services as specified herein to residents of the area served 

by the CONTRACTOR. These services shall be provided in the CONTRACTOR'S facilities, 

by the CONTRACTOR’S employees and by others designated by the CONTRACTOR to 

carry out the provisions of this agreement. 

B. The CONTRACTOR shall comply with the regulations and guidelines set forth in the Federal 

code (§42 U.S.C. 1786), and shall abide by the fiscal and operational policy requirements 

prescribed by the DEPARTMENT and the U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA). 

C. The CONTRACTOR shall provide nutrition education to all adult participants, to parents or 

guardians of child participants and, when applicable, to child participants in order to conform 

to the DEPARTMENT’S and the CONTRACTOR’S Nutrition Education Plans and to USDA 

Regulations. 

35

Item 5.



Page 6 of 8 
 

D. The CONTRACTOR shall adhere to the Nutrition Education Plan submitted by the 

CONTRACTOR and approved by the DEPARTMENT each January. That document provides 

a plan for improving the program quality and for meeting State performance objectives for the 

WIC program. 

E. The CONTRACTOR must maintain competent professional staff, facilities and equipment 

needed to perform the measurements and tests necessary for determining the eligibility of 

persons for WIC participation. 

F. The CONTRACTOR shall utilize the WIC food delivery system approved by the 

DEPARTMENT for making WIC food benefits available to participants. 

G. The CONTRACTOR shall provide WIC food benefits to all categories of eligible participants: 

infants, children, and pregnant, postpartum or lactating women. 

H. The CONTRACTOR shall exchange participant information with surrounding health agencies 

and with agencies with overlapping WIC services areas in accordance with Food and 

Consumer Services (FCS) Instruction 801-1 (confidentiality) to prevent dual participation. 

I. The CONTRACTOR shall operate the WIC Program in accordance with the provisions of the 

DEPARTMENT'S current WIC Program Policies and Procedures Manual, as amended. 

J. The CONTRACTOR shall ensure the CONTRACTOR'S WIC Director/Coordinator or 

designee attends all Utah Association of WIC Administrators meetings. 

K. The CONTRACTOR shall securely store, maintain and convey all serialized inventory 

equipment, paper vouchers, eWIC cards and other disposables as required in the 

DEPARTMENT'S WIC Policy and Procedures Manual. 

L. The CONTRACTOR shall immediately conduct an initial investigation and follow-up of 

suspected fraudulent acts committed by WIC Program participants detected either by the 

CONTRACTOR or by the DEPARTMENT, and notify the DEPARTMENT immediately in 

every case when fraud is discovered or is confirmed to have occurred.  

M. The CONTRACTOR shall serve only participants who reside within the geographical area 

served by the CONTRACTOR. If CONTRACTOR serves specialty clients, it shall serve only 

those clients who reside within the geographical area served by the CONTRACTOR and shall 

serve only the special population(s) approved by the State WIC office. An exception(s) to this 

provision requires prior written approval by the State WIC Director, which will be reviewed on 

a case by case basis. 

N. If a printer error occurs, a CONTRACTOR’s clinic is NOT allowed to print vouchers until the 

printer that experienced the error is identified. After that printer is identified, all other printers 

may continue to operate. The clinic will need to re-print any vouchers that were printed in 

error for a timeframe determined by the DEPARTMENT. 

IV. NON-DISCRIMINATION 

A. The CONTRACTOR shall comply with all provisions required by the implementing regulations 

of the USDA, Department of Justice Enforcement Guidelines at 28 CFR 50.3, and FNS 

directives and guidelines (available at https://www.fns.usda.gov/cr/civil-rights-laws-

regulations). No person shall on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, religious 

creed, disability, age, or reprisal or retaliation for prior civil rights activity in any program or 

activity conducted or funded by USDA be excluded from participation in, be denied benefits 

of, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity for which the 

CONTRACTOR receives Federal financial assistance from FCS. CONTRACTOR hereby 

gives assurance that the CONTRACTOR will immediately take measures necessary to 

effectuate all non-discrimination requirements. 

B. The CONTRACTOR shall compile data, maintain records and submit reports as required to 

permit effective enforcement of the nondiscrimination laws and permit authorized USDA 

36

Item 5.

https://www.fns.usda.gov/cr/civil-rights-laws-regulations
https://www.fns.usda.gov/cr/civil-rights-laws-regulations


Page 7 of 8 
 

personnel during normal working hours to review such records, books and accounts as 

needed to ascertain compliance with the nondiscrimination laws. If any violations of these 

provisions are discovered, the DEPARTMENT or the USDA Food and Nutrition Service shall 

have the right to seek judicial enforcement of these provisions. These provisions are binding 

on the CONTRACTOR, its successors, transferees, and assignees, as long as they receive 

assistance or retain possession of any assistance from the DEPARTMENT. 

V. COMPUTER EQUIPMENT AND SUPPLIES: 

A. The DEPARTMENT agrees to provide serially numbered food vouchers and certain blank 

forms to the CONTRACTOR. The DEPARTMENT also agrees to provide serially numbered 

eWIC cards to the CONTRACTOR. 

B. The CONTRACTOR owns the computers in operation at all local WIC clinics within the 

CONTRACTOR’s jurisdiction. Computers and equipment that must be maintained and/or 

purchased by the CONTRACTOR includes, but may not be limited to: Personal Computers, 

Laptop Computers, LCD Screens/Monitors, Computer Mice, LCD Projectors, Report Printers 

and all other equipment required to maintain business operations. 

C. The CONTRACTOR shall replace any computer equipment that is lost, stolen, or abused. 

D. The DEPARTMENT agrees to replace all Magnetic Ink Character Recognition (MICR) 

Printers, Scanners, Signature Pads, and eWIC card reader devices that support the VISION 

(WIC) Information System food benefits issuance. 

E. The CONTRACTOR shall purchase MICR toner for all MICR printers within the 

CONTRACTOR’s jurisdiction. 

F. The DEPARTMENT shall provide card acceptor devices to the CONTRACTOR for purposes 

of placing food benefits on electronic WIC smart cards. 

G. The CONTRACTOR shall supply its WIC Program with the computers purchased with 

Technology Services funding from this Contract. Computers and equipment for other 

CONTRACTOR programs may not be purchased using funding from this Contract.  

VI. NSA FUNDS MODIFICATION: 

A. The total amount of NSA Funds under this Contract, as outlined in Section I.A., is subject to 

quarterly adjustments as required by State or Federal requirements and practices. Unused 

funds may lapse and revert back to the DEPARTMENT or USDA for reallocation. 

VII. TRAINING AND CERTIFICATION: 

A. The DEPARTMENT agrees to provide workshops and other training for CONTRACTOR’S 

employees regarding nutrition, medical certification, eWIC benefit issuance and maintenance, 

and fiscal/administrative aspects of WIC. 

B. The CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all employees of the CONTRACTOR involved in the 

WIC Program have an opportunity to attend DEPARTMENT-sponsored seminars and/or 

training meetings. 

VIII. REQUIRED DEPARTMENT APPROVALS: 

A. The CONTRACTOR must obtain written approval from the DEPARTMENT to purchase 

capital equipment items. Capital Equipment items are defined as items or a group of like 

items with a cost of $5,000.00 or more and a useful life of at least one year. Examples are 

building signage, building upgrades/modifications and vehicles. Computers and computer 

equipment does not require DEPARTMENT approval to purchase. 

B. The CONTRACTOR shall pay for all in-state and out-of-state travel by WIC staff. The 

CONTRACTOR must obtain written approval from the DEPARTMENT for out-of-state travel. 

37

Item 5.



Page 8 of 8 
 

IX. INTERGENERATIONAL POVERTY EFFORTS 

A. In an effort to support families who are experiencing intergenerational poverty and who desire 

to break the cycle for themselves and their children, the DEPARTMENT will reach out directly 

to families who self-identify or who have signed formal releases of consent to have their 

information shared with local health departments and other state agencies to be informed of 

resources and programs available that will promote positive health outcomes for themselves 

and their children. 

X. DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

A. If any dispute arises between the parties during the activities described by this Contract, the 

parties agree to seek a resolution through open communication and dialogue. 

B. Either party may request a conference to resolve a disputed issue (consistent with Utah 

Admin. Code R380-10-3, which supports dispute resolution at the lowest level possible). 

C. If a resolution cannot be reached, Department may bring supervisory personnel into the 

process to facilitate resolving issues and achieving agreement. 

D. The provisions in Sections X.B. and X.C. are not mandatory. 

E. If a dispute is not resolved within 30 days of Department decision, the Department’s decision 

is considered the “initial agency determination,” as defined by Utah Admin. Code R380-10-

2(3). 

F. These provisions do not preclude or affect the provisions, rights, limitations, or timelines for 

appealing Department actions that are provided or required by Utah Code §§ 26-23-2, 26-1-

4.1, or 26-1-7.1, Utah Admin. Code R380-10, or the Utah Administrative Procedures Act 

(Utah Code § 63G-4). 

G. In the event of any conflict between the Dispute Resolution provisions in the Special 

Provisions of this Contract with applicable law or rules, the provisions of the applicable law or 

rules shall control. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

38

Item 5.



Procurement 
Request/Approval

SAN JUAN COUNTY
Department:  Landfill Operations Date: 9/21/20

Grant Program: 
N/A
Items: 2011 Kohler 40kW Generator S/N:3028587, Model # 40REOZJC
           

 State Contract  GSA Contract X Sole Source  Sealed Bid
X Written Quote  Verbal Quote  Budgeted Item X Non Budgeted
Copies Attached: BOS, for sale ad Other:
Trade In: N/A Replacement: Needed to replace defective 

unit #743, 30kW Kohler Generator
Procurement Approval Information: 
Needed to replace recently failed unit.  Necessary for compliance per Landfill Operating 
Permit.

Additional Comments:  
See attached Justification comments, comp bids, BOS, Service Tech comments
Low Bid: buying used, no bid Cost: $12,500

Department Approval
Requested: Randy E. Rarick Amount of Request: $12,500

Department Manager Signature:
County Commission Approval

County Commission Approval:
Date:10/6/20  Approved  Declined
County Fixed 
Asset Number:

 Purchase 
Order Issued:

PO #:2020-10 Equipment 
Number:

Added to 
Insurance: 

39

Item 6.



Bill of Sale

BE  IT KNO\/VN, that for payment in the sum  of $  12,500.00,  the full  receipt of which` is acknowledged,
the undersigned  Phillios  Electric lnc (Seller)  hereby sells and transfers to San Juan County Utah

(Buyer), the following described  motor vehicle ovehicle):

Make:                                      Kohler Model orseries:      40REOZJC

Year:                                          12/11 Color:                             Tan

Serial #                               3028587 Service Duty:             Standby

HZ:  60  RPM:  1800 FUEL:  Diesel
BATT:  12 V

The sale is subject to the following conditions and representations:

Seller acknowledges receipt of $  12,500.00 full  payment from the  Buyer.

Seller warrants to  Buyer that Seller has full authority to sell and transfer said  property. The property is
sold free of all  liens, encumbrances,  liabilities,  and adverse claims of every nature and description
whatsoever.

Seller has no knowledge of any hidden defects in and to the Machine and believes to the best of the
Seller's  knowledge that the  Equipment being sold  is  in good  operating  condition.  Said  Machine is
otherwise sold  in  "as is"  condition  and where currently located.

Date signed:                                      September 22, 2020

Seller:                                                      Phillips  Electric                                                 ~

Buyer:                                     San.Juancountyutah,4     ey\+Z:          ..g%        I

:I::::::::_ceof(IN.|f ymess,..  /2Avf i       /|',th:J£/           ,
printnameofwitness:         Ca/®,        3ch`,'-H`vi,\5

I 70   Tt;LA~AZL  lorr2,/si.L•Dch4v30 , C2     6/3CJ3

40

Item 6.



41

Item 7.



42

Item 7.



43

Item 7.



44

Item 7.



 

 

 

COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

MEETING DATE: October 6, 2020 

SUBMITTED BY: Nick Sandberg, San Juan County Public Lands Coordinator 

TITLE: Bluff River Trail Support Letter, Nick Sandberg, San Juan County Public 

Lands Coordinator 

RECOMMENDATION: Make a motion approving support of the Bluff River Trail System 

 

SUMMARY 

The Bluff City Historic Preservation Association (BCHPA), in partnership with the Grand Canyon Trust 

(GCT), the Bureau of Land Management (BLM) Monticello Field Office (MFO), and local property 

owners, proposes to construct, maintain, and designate 6.7 miles of trails on BLM-managed lands, as 

part of a greater 10.6 mile Bluff River Trail system. The non-motorized trail system would be developed 

for pedestrian, bicycle (including e-bikes), and equestrian use on BLM-managed lands and private land 

easements (3.9 miles), along the San Juan River between Sand Island Recreation Area and the town of 

Bluff, UT. The trail would be natural surface, except for a 0.9-mile accessible trail segment (segment 

#2) that may require additional materials for hardening to meet Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 

standards. 

HISTORY/PAST ACTION 

N/A 

FISCAL IMPACT 

N/A 

45

Item 8.



46

Item 8.



47

Item 8.



48

Item 8.



A A S HID
The Voice of TransporIatidn

American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials

Seven (7) Page Form
An Application from the State Highway or Transportation Department of

UTAH
for (select one of the following):

□□□□□□□□
□

Elimination of a U.S. (Interstate) Route 163
Establishment of a U.S. (Interstate) Route
Extension of a U.S. (Interstate)Route
Relocation of a U.S. (Interstate) Route
Establishment of a U.S. Alternate Route
Establishment of a Temporary U.S. Route
‘•Recognition of a Business Route on U.S. (Interstate) Route
“Recognition of a By-Pass Route on U.S. Route
‘Establishment of a U.S. Bicycle Route (A new form is being
DEVELOPED FOR US BIKE ROUTES - continue to use this until the new form is
finalized)
‘Relocation of a U.S. Bicycle Route (Saa)

Between: Crescent Junction and Bluff 

The following states or states are involved:

Utah

■s.,
g> o 9. y 8?«*5> «-v •• M »'-g

E Stl
1

srf.
• * Bicycle Routes: Attach map on page 3. Obtain Signatures, page 4.

Type a statement indicating that there are no deficiencies on the 
proposed US Bike Route. Other sections not applicable.

• ““Recognition of...”A local vicinity map needed on page 3. On page 6 a 
short statement to the effect that there are no deficiencies on proposed routing, if true, will suffice.

• If there are deficiencies, they should be indicated in accordance with page 5 instructions.
• All applications requesting interstate establishment or changes are subject to concurrence and approval 

by the FHWA

DATE SUBMITTED Select from Calendar;08/01/2008

SUBMIT APPLICATION ELECTRONICALLY TO usroutes@aashto.ora

You may convert your form as a PDF file, print then scan or submit as a saved word file. Send only one copy, please.

49

Item 10.



r The purpose of the United States (U.S.) Numbered Highway System is to facilitate travel on the main interstate 
highways, over the shortest routes and the best available roads. A route should form continuity of available facilities 
through two or more states that accommodate the most important and heaviest motor traffic flow in the area.

The routes comprising the National System of Interstate and Defense Highways will be marked with its own distinctive 
route marker shield and will have a numbering system that is separate and apart from the U.S. Numbered Highway 
System. For the convenience of the motorist, there must be continuity and a uniform pattern of marking and numbering 
these Interstate routes without regard to state lines.

The U.S. Numbered System was established in 1926 and the Interstate Numbered System was established in 1956. Both 
have reached the period of review, revision, and consolidation. They now need perfecting rather than expansion. 
Therefore, any proposed alteration in the established systems should be extremely meritorious and thoroughly, though 
concisely, explained in order that the Special Committee on U.S. Route Numbering and the Standing Committee on 
Highways of the Association may give prompt and proper consideration to each and every request made by a member 
department.

Explanation and Reasons for the Request (US and Interstates Only): (Keep concise and pertinent.) The first 137 

miles of US-163 are concurrent with US-191. The local Region office has proposed eliminating this concurrency to reduce 

concurrent signing and simplify matters for the traveling public.

Date facility available to traffic Existing Facility

Does the petition propose a new routing over a portion of an existing U.S. Route? No 
If so, where?

Does the petition propose a new routing over a portion of an existing Interstate Route? No 
If so, where?

50

Item 10.



51

Item 10.



Map of state, or portion thereof, indicating proposed addition or change in the (This includes US, Interstates and 

Bteyela Roiitos)
U.S. Numbered or interstate Numbered System:

There are two ways to do this follow the instructions below or convert your map in PDF format and submit as a separate 
document along with this application to usroutesQaashto.oro. It is your preference, however all files are converted to 
PDF once received by AASI^O.

INSERT YOUR MAP HERE 
INSTRUCTIONS ON HOW TO INSERT A FILE:

Go to the top “Standard Formatting” toolbar and 
Select “View"
Select Toolbars”
Select “Forms^
Once the Forms toolbar is in view you can uQlrok the FORM’S that looks like this
Insert your MAP as a file or picture by selei^^ “Insert” from the standard formatting toolbar 
Relock the Gold Lock to protect the form
If this doesn’t work, then send the MAP asT^Rtachment with your email along with the application.

(A photographic reduction or section of departmental map attached to this sheet. May be folded to sheet size, but do not 
use a map larger than four 8.5 x 11 Inch sheets in size.)

(Indicate termini and control points on the map for the route, and number them in sequence. Use the same numbers in 
column 1 tabulation, page 6, when listing mileage. Towns, cities, major highway Intersections and state lines to be 
used as control points. The top of column 1, page 6, will be one terminus, and column 1 will give the log of the route as 
needed to describe the route in the Association publication U.S. Numbered Highways if the application is approved by the 
Standing Committee on Highways.)

£

52

Item 10.



The State agrees and pledges its good faith that it will not erect, remove, or change any U.S. or Interstate Route Markers 
on any road without the authorization, consent, or approval of the Standing Committee on Highways of the American 
Association of State Highway and Transportation Offidals, not withstanding the fact that the changes proposed are 
entirely within this State.

The weighted average daily traffic volume along the proposed route, as shown on the map on page 3, is as compared 
to NM for the yearfor all other U.S. Numbered Routes in the State.

The Purpose and Policy in the Establishment and Development of the United States Numbered Highways, as Retained 
from October 3,1991 or the Purpose and Policy in the Establishment of a Marking System of the Routes Comprising the 
National System of Interstate and Defense Highways as Retained from August 10,1973 has been read and is accepted.

In our opinion, this petition complies with the above applicable policy.

(Signature Required - see note below) 

(Member Department)

This petition is authorized by official action of

under date of as follows: (Copy excerpt from minutes.)

(This includes US, Interstates and Bicycle Routee)
A letter from your Chief Executive Officer with the CEO's signature Is sufficient when submitting your application, if you 

choose not to include the signature on this form.

53

Item 10.



(US and Interstates Only)

Instructions for Preparation of Page 6

Column 1:

Column 2:

Control Points and Mileage. Top of column is one terminus of road. Indicate control points by identical 
number as shown on map on page 3. Show mileage between control points in miles and tenths.

Column 3:

Pavement Type. Code
High type, heavy duty H
Intermediate type 1
Low type, dustless L (show in red)
Not paved N (show in red)

Pavement Condition Code
Excellent E
Good G
Fair F (show in red)
Poor P (show in red)

NOTE; In columns 2 and 3, where pavements types and conditions change, the location of the change shall be indicated 
by a short horizontal line at the proper place opposite the mileage log and the proper code letter (shown above) shall be 
entered in the respective column between the locations so indicated.

Column 4:

Columns 5 & 6

Columns 7 & 8

Column 9:

Column 10:

Column 11

Traffic. Indicate average daily traffic volumes In this column. Points of changes in these data to 
be indicated by short horizontal lines opposite the appropriate mileage point on the miieage log. 
Any existing main line rail crossing that is not separated shali be indicated at the appropriate 
mileage point by RXR • black if signalized - red if not protected by signals.

Pavement Width and Shoulder Width. These columns to be completed by comparing standards 
of highway involved with applicable AASHTO standards. Entries that fall to the right of the 
tolerance lines (dashed) should be shaded in red. If there are no deficiencies indicate by use of 
the word NONE.

Major Structures. Show in these columns those structures that do not meet AASHTO standards. 
Show by horizontal line sufficiently long to indicate percentage of deficiency. Portion on right of 
tolerance line shall be shown in red. Indicate length of structure in feet immediately under the line. 
Any sub-standard highway underpass structure shall be shown opposite the appropriate mileage 
point by the designation LP with the vertical clearance in feet following and shown in red. If there 
are no deficiencies indicate by the use of the word NONE.

Vertical Sight Distance. Items to be shown in this column as a horizontal line, the length of 
which will indicate the deficiency as determined in accordance with comparisons with comparable 
AASHTO standards. Portions of the line past the tolerance line shall be shown in red.

Horizontal Curvature. Curves in excess of AASHTO applicable standards to be shown in this 
column by a short horizontal line with degree of curve shown immediately above the line. To be 
shown in red.

Percent Grades. Show by horizontal lines opposite proper mileage point on mileage log. Show 
percent of grade above the line and length of grade In feet immediately below. To be shown in 
red.

What follows is an Excel worksheet that you can open by right clicking your mouse and select “Worksheet Objecf - you 
can then Edit, Open or Convert but you must first unlock the form as show when inserting maps.

54

Item 10.



55

Item 10.



(This includes US, Interstates and Bicycle Routes)
Contact regarding this application:

Name: Peter Jager, P.E., PTOE

Address: 4501 S 2700 W Box 143600 Salt Lake City. UT 84114-3600 

Telephone Number 801-965-4560 

Fax Number: 801-965-4551 

Email Address: pjager@utah.gov

Description to be provided to the AASHTO Highways Special Committee on US Route Number (USRN) when they 
review this application;

o Where does the route begin? (Intersection or Mile Marker) Crescent Junction: 1-70 & US-191 

o Describe where it is going? Southerly through southeast Utah into Arizona 

o What type of facility is it traveling over? (New aiignment or over an existing pathway) Existing 

o Give the direction of travel(north, east, south, and west) South 

o Name the focal point city or cities Moab, Monticello, Blanding, Bluff, Kayenta 

o Length of route in miies. 201

o Where does it end? (Terminai intersection or mile marker) Jet US-160 in Kayenta

56

Item 10.



9/14/2020 Proposed Extension of U.S. 163

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/#search/le.heatr58/WhctKJVzfPhKvcmVTrsKWgqLptfWDHBkwCLlWdBdrgHvJhRtrCKkvBqwvgRGsFZVBvjTbvv?proj… 1/1

57

Item 10.



AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF STATE HI6HWAY OFFICIALS
AN APPLICATION

FROM THE STATE HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT OF

ARIZONA

FOR
; 'j

■j 1

Q the Establishment of a U.S. Route 

0 the Relocation of U.S. Route

0 the Extension of U.S. Route ............

□ the Establishment of an Alternate U.S. Route’...........

□ the Establishment of a Temporary U.S. Route.........
>

* □ the Recognition of a Business Route on U.S. Route

* Q the Recognition of a By-pass Route on U.S. Route ...

BETWEEN
Cortez, Colo, and Tuba City, Arizona 
.Kayenta,..Ar.i.z*.... and .C.ne.acejnt...Jc.t*.,...U.taJb

The Following 

State or States are 

Involved:

(In case more than one State is involved, an application must 
be submitted by each State for that portion within the respective 
State.)

ARIZONA

UTAH

NEW MEXICO

ONj

^ <V)i

^ ^ 
^ ^ Ivsi -S’ §

I *3 O
OC
(JC9
ao

Q,O,

G
9z

9O
V

*c
Pd

0) V CP4-1 4^
P Q Q

eIu
CP
>

CP

r2
aou

C9Q

E
E
oU
OP

9
CP
CP
X

C
.2'•9CP

<

•ei
o

■Ni «<^ e

T3 o V C55 ■*< 
o .2'7 •*>
■S ■*'

Q.

V

E
V

COLORADO Da/e Submitted:

>6 June 19l,69

* A local vicinity map needed on Page 3. On Page 5 a short statement to the effect that there are no deficiencies on proposed 
routing, if true, will suffice. If there are deficiencies, they should be so indicated in accordance with Page 4 instructions.

SUBMIT SIX COPIES

58

Item 10.



The State Highway Department agrees and pledges its good faith that it will not erect, remove, or change 
any U. S. Route Markers on any road without the authorization, consent, or approval of the Executive Committee 
of the American Association of State Highway Officials, not withstanding the fact that the changes proposed are 
entirely within this State.

- US 164 & SR 464
The weighted average daily traffic volume along the proposed route, as shown on the map on page 3, is

........... ...................... as compared to.......... ....................... for the year of for all other U. S. Numbered
routes in the State.

The "Purpose and Policy in the Establishment and Development of United States Numbered Highways, as Re
vised August 1, 1962” has been read and is accepted.

In our opinion, this petition complies with the above policy:

(Signature)

Chief Administrative Official, ARIZONA STATE HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT
(Member Department)

This petition is authorized by official action of...............
under date of ........... ....................... .1.?.^.?............... as follows: (Copy excerpt from Minutes)

WHEREAS, it has been recommended by the Navajo Trai1 Association and 
concurred in'by Utah, New Mexico, and Colorado States that U.S. Route 164 
from U.S. Route 89 near Tuba City, Arizona, northeasterly via Kayenta, Mexican 
Water and Teec Nos Pos to Cortez, Colorado, be designated as a part of U.S, 
Route 160, that present U.S. Route 160 from Cortez, Colorado, northwesterly to 
Monticello, Utah, be redesignated as U.S. Route 666 and that the highway from 
Kayenta, Arizona, northerly via Monticello, Utah, to Crescent Junction be 
designated as U.S. Route 164, and

WHEREAS, the redesignation and addition of these roUtes will result in 
the continuity of U.S. route designations and will assist tlie touring public, 
and >

WHEREAS, the designation of State Route 464 as a part of U.S. Route 164 
will provide a U.S. Designated Route in the northeastern part of Arizona that 
will be beneficial as a guide to the touring public, and

NOW THEREFORE, be It resolved as follows;

1. That the necessary documents pertaining to the additioji and redesignation 
of the aforementioned roads within Arizona be prepared and; Submitted to the 
American Association of State Highway Officials for approval.

59

Item 10.



«e«tOA l«lM« 35tl»* I3I9. hy IT» •• la«t« liii*«gint i«ktMiitCC««
mtA myptm^ «m OttitrsK 3ad»> I969« %f tin* is»«iiciTO dwlttees

f« dwlaiiAt* M ttm UXi^My 190 t)M9 nmf turn 
Com** 0»lt9«ie» Miith V* !• Mf t# to* tettMtotlM ef st*t* S«Nt»
40. «t*v]y^l»lai 9t«t« teoe«» 40« «n4 44 t* to* 4*MrMctiM *f
V» t» in ttO* City* ArlMMMu

t* 4*»it**t* M 0* S« 19$ !^«t rMt« ptMMtly 4lM»l^jpMI««4 «• 0. $* 444 
f«<Mi G«ll«p* t!«if t* Cottot* Golon4»« e* Cvmmc J«act4oa«
tn*t ••ecioa pr<i««»ttx m 0« 9* 140*

th« «441tt4» of • void:* bottrooa MoMioollo^ «o4 X*XMito« Aviotoo* 
woo 4«Bi«4 M oot Ooittt 4tt««l0J)>4l4 to foil SOOOOtn* 4ooif» otoofortfo owl 
not Ootof ootoototp fox t0« ptofor 41v*«t&oo of etofftfi*

60

Item 10.



The purpose of the U. S. Numbering and Marking is to facilitate movement along the general direction of 
desire lines of travel over the shortest and best available roads, and a route should form continuity of available 
facilities through two or more States that accommodate the most important and heaviest motor traffic flow in the

area.

The system was established in 1926 and the U. S. Route System has reached the point of review, revision, con
solidation, and perfecting, rather than continuous expansion. Therefore, any proposed .alteration in the established 
system should be extremely meritorious and thoroughly, though concisely, explained in order that the Route Num
bering Committee and the Executive Committee of the Association may give prompt and proper consideration to 
each and every request made by a Member Department.

Explanation and Reasons for the Request'. (Keep Concise and Pertinent)

It is requested that U.S. Route 160 be designated from Cortez, Colorado southerly 
over the routing of U.S. Route 666 for approximately 20 miles to the junction with 
present U.S. Route 164 and thence southwesterly on the routing of present U.S.
Route 164 to a junction with U.S. Route 89 near Tuba City, Arizona.

Present U.S. Route 164 is designated from U.S. Route 666 south of Cortez, Colorado, 
southwesterly to U.S. Route 89 near Tuba City, Arizona. The entire routing of 
present U.S. Route 164 will be designated as a portion of U.S. Route 160 and there
fore, it is requested that the present location of U.S. Route 164 be deleted under 
this proposal.

It is further suggested that the routing from proposed U.S. Route 160 (present U.S. 
Route 164) at Kayenta, Arizona, northerly via Arizona State Highway No. 464 and 
Utah State Highway No. 47 through Mexican Hat, Bluff, and Blanding to Monticello, 
Utah, then northerly via present U.S. Route 160 to Crescent Junction (U.S. Route 
6 & 50), be designated ajS U.S. Route 164 and therefore it is requested that the 
present designation of U.S. Route 160 from Monticello, Utah, to Crescent Junction 
be deleted under this proposal.

This renumbering of U.S. Routes will provide a more desirable continuity of routings 
for the traveling public through the Fpur Corners Area of Colorado, Utah, New Mexico 
and Arizona.

The extension of U.S. Route 160 to a junction with U.S. Route 89 near Tuba City, 
Arizona, would designate one U.S. Route number along the historical Navajo Trail. 
This route in recent years has become extremely popular due to the development of 
recreation facilities in the area and due to improvements that have been made in 
the highway network.

The designation of U.S. Route 164 from Kayenta, Arizona, northerly via Mexican Hat, 
Bluff, and Monticello to Crescent Junction will provide a U.S. Route in the south
east portion of Utah and will be beneficial to the touring public.

Does the petition propose a new routing over a portion of an existing U. S. Route................ ? If so, where:

61

Item 10.



62

Item 10.



SCALf - NtUt

63

Item 10.



Map of State or Portion thereof, 
indicating proposed 

addition or change in the 
U. S. Numbered System:

/'

(A photographic reduction or section of Departmental Map attached to this sheet—^may be folded to-sheet size, but 
do not use a map larger than four x 11" sheets in size.)

Paste Here 
and

Fold to Size

(Indicate termini and control points on the map for the route, and number them in sequence. Use same numbers 
in Column 1 tabulation. Page 5, when listing mileage. Towns, Cities, Major Highway Intersections and State 
Lines to be used on Control Points. The top of Column 1, Page 5, will be one terminus, and Column 1 will give 
the log of the route as needed to describe the route in the Association publication “U. S. Numbered Highways,” if the 
application is approved by the Executive Committee.)

64

Item 10.



Column 1: Control Points and Mileage. Top of column is one terminus of road. Indicate control points by
identical number as shown on map on page 3. 
tenths.

Show mileage between control points in miles and

Column 2: Pavement Type.

High type, heavy duty 
Intermediate type 
Low type, dustless 
Not paved

Code

H
I
L (Show in red) 
N (Show in red)

Column 3: Pavement Condition.

Excellent
Good
Fair
Poor

Code

E
G
F (Show iti red) 
P (Show in red).

note: In columns 2 and 3, where pavement types and conditions change, the location of the change shall be indi
cated by a short horizontal line at the proper place opposite the mileage log and the proper code letter 
(shown above) shall be entered in the respective column between the locations so indicated.

Column 4:. Traffic. Indicate average daily trafiBc volumes in this column. Points of changes in these data to be 
indicated by short horizontal lines opposite the appropriate mileage-point on the mileage log. Any 
existing main line rail crossing that is not separated shall be indicated at the appropriate mileage point 
by RXa—Black if signalized—Red if not protected by signals.

Columns Pavement Width and Shoulder Width. These columns to be completed by comparing standards of
5 & 6: highway involved with applicable AASHO Primary Standards. Entries that fall to the right of the

tolerance line (dashed) should be shaded in red.

Columns Major Structures. Show in these columns those structures that do not meet AASHO Primary Stand-
7 & 8; ards. Show by horizontal line sufficiently long to indicate percentage of deficiency. Portion on

right of tolerance line shall be shown in red. Indicate length of structure in feet immediately under 
the line. Any substandard highway underpass structure shall be shown opposite the appropriate 
mileage point by the designation LP with the vertical clearance in feet following and shown in red.

Column 9: Vertical Sight Distance. Items to be shown in this column as a horizontal line, the length of which
will indicate the deficiency as determined in accordance with comparisons with comparable AASHO 
Primary Standards. Portion of line past the tolerance line shall be shown in red.

Column 10: Horizontal Curvature. Curves in excess of AASHO applicable Primary Standards-to be shown in 
this column by a short horizontal line with degree of curve shown immediately above the line. To 
be shown in red.

Column 11: Percent Grades. Show by horizontal lines opposite proper point on mileage log. Show percent of 
grade above the line and length of grade in feet immediately below. To be shown in red.

65

Item 10.



AASHO ROUTE NUMBERING CCMUTTEE

Analysis of an Application for Addition, Change, or Extension 
to the U,S, Route Nuinber System

Application of AMIQIU « ». I, SOVn 1A4 Date Submitted

1. Completeness and clarity of application*

2* Proposed route most direct and best available.

3* Traffic need Is present*

4* Proposed route Is geometrically and structurally adeqxiate*

5* Relation to other D*S» Routes In area or adjoining States;

(a) Complements and Integrates with other UcS* Routes:

(b) Creates over•concentration of U*S. Routes*

6. Apparent origin of application:

(a) To serve a meritorious need;

(b) Non-Highway Department promotion*

7e Application has previously been denied*

8. Proposed route presently has a continuous State Route Designation*

Net Score

Credit Points 

♦ 5

+ 25 

+ 25

♦ 25

♦ 10 

- 10

+ 10 

- 10

- 5

+

(70 or above considered as justifying 
favorable action on application*)

Date

66

Item 10.



AASHO ROUTE NUMBERING COMMITTEE

Analysis of an Application for Addition* Change, or Extension 
to the U.S, Route Ihsaber System

Application of AfcllOMA ^ iim Date Submitted

Credit Points 

+ 51. Completeness and clarity of application.

2. Proposed route most direct and best available. + 25

3. Traffic need Is present. * 25

4. Proposed route Is geometrically and structurally adequate. * 25

5. Relation to other U.S. Routes In area or adjoining Statesj

(a) Conplaments and Integrates with other U.S. IU>utes: ♦ 10

(b) Creates over'concentration of U.S. Routes. - 10

6a Apparent origin of application:

(a) To serve a meritorious need; 4> 10

(b) Non-Highway Department promotion. - 10

7a Application has previously been denied. - 5

8. Proposed route presently has a continuous State Route Designation. * 5

Net Score

(70 or above considered as Justifying 
favorable action on application.)

Date

67

Item 10.



JACK WILLIAMS 
GOVERNOR

BUS MEAD 
CHAIRMAN

ED C. LOCKLEAR 
VICE CHAIRMAN

PETER B. WILHARM 
MEMBER

DAN C. MCKINNEY 
MEMBER

RUDY E. CAMPBELL 
MEMBER

ARIZONA HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT
Phoenix, Arizona 85OO7 

13 June 1969

JUSTIN HERMAN 
STATE HIGHWAY DIRECTOR

WM. N. PRICE 
STATE HIGHWAY ENGINEER

U.S. Route Numbering Committee 
American Association of State Highway Officials 
917 National Press Building 
Washington, D. C. 20004

Attention:

Gentlemen:

Mr. A. E. Johnson 
Executive Secretary

Enclosed for your consideration are six copies of an application 
in conjunction with Utah, Colorado, and New Mexico pertaining to the 
redesignation of U.S, Routes in the northeast and the Four Corners 
areas in Arizona.

These changes are part of an overall proposal to improve U.S. 
route numbering in the area.

By this action these U.S, Routes will provide a more desirable 
continuity of routings for the traveling public through the Four 
Corners Area of Arizona, Colorado, Utah, and New Mexico.

Favorable consideration of this request will be sincerely 
appreciated.

Very truly yours.

WM. N. PRICE 
State Highway Engineer

FHH/sjn 

end.

68

Item 10.



June 18, 1969

William N. Price 
State Highway Engineer 
Arizona Highway Department 
206 South 17th Avenue 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007

Dear Mr. Price:

This will acknowledge receipt of your letCir of June 13, 1969, 
and the six copies of an application for U.S. route numbering change.

Unfortunately, your letter and enclosures were received too late 
to be Included on the agenda for consideration at the Summer Mefetlng, 
but it will be put on the agenda for the meeting in the fall.

Yours truly.

dkn

H. J. Rhodes
Assistant to the Director

69

Item 10.



JACK WILLIAMS 
GOVERNOR

%BUS MEAD 
CHAIRMAN

ED C. LOCKLEAR 
VICE CHAIRMAN

PETER B. WILHARM 
MEMBER

LEW DAVIS 
MEMBER

RUDY E. CAMPBELL
MEMBER

' V,.
t-i a*

ARIZONA HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT
Phoenix, Arizona 85007

JUSTIN HERMAN 
STATE HIGHWAY DIRECTOR

WM. N. PRICE 
STATE HIGHWAY ENGINEER

13 November 1969

Mr. A. E. Johnson 
Executive Director
American Association of State Highway Officials 
341 National Press Building 
Washington, D. C. 20004

Dear Mr. Johnson:

In reply to your letter of November 4, 1969 concerning U. S, Highway 
l60 we have the following comments:

The description of U, S. Route 160 was extremely difficult to follow 
since it referred to overlapping routes not existing in Arizona, or routes 
located in a different part of the State. Arizona has no State Route 40 
or 44. State Route 67 is located at the north rim of the Grand Canyon, 
some 50 miles west of the western terminus of U. S. 160. May it also 
be noted that the junction of U. S. 160 and U. S, 89 is 10.4 miles west 
of Tuba City, not in Tuba City as stated in your description.

Assuming proposed U. S. Route 160 follows the alignment previously 
assigned by AASHO to U. S. 164 in Arizona, we concur in your recom
mendations .

Would you please notify us whether our assumptions concerning U. S. 
160 routing are correct, and the effective date of this action? An early 
response would be sincerely appreciated since our sign shop and mapping 
division are awaiting official authorization to begin the considerably 
complex task of renumbering a long route.

Very truly yours,

WM. N. PRICE 
State Highw

cc: Henry C. Helland, Director of Highways
Utah Highway Department 
Li. G. Boles, State Highway Engineer 
New Mexico Highway Department 
Chas. E. Shumate, Chief Engineer 
Colorado State Department of Highways

eer

.CEIVEiDA.A,S.H.O.

NOV 17 J969 «70

Item 10.



Hovtofcer 20» 1969

ttr« «• B* frie*
Sttm BiBBtriqr Iflngtn—r 
Arlsona Stmtm Bigtvragr 
206 tenth 17th Aynum 
PhomlXt Arisona tS(K}7

tear Hr* Prieat
In tt^ljr to fwt lattar of Booatbar tha 19th» eenearaiag tha actios of 

tha U* S* aiosta Hinharliv $sheMaittaa» yosr aaasapcioo that tha tealesatlos 
of 0* 8. 160 «oal4 foUoo that roata praaaatljr 4aolgaaca4 aa 0* S* 164 froa 
Gortaa* Colorado* to Jvaetion oaat of fuha City* Ariaoaa*

This daaigaatios haa sot yat baas eosesrrad in tha Stata of Ctah alnea 
tha prasantldasissatioB of 0* 8» 160 vosld hava to ha ehas|^ from Cartaa* 
Colorado* to Craaeaat Joaetion* Otah*

It haa haaa coacarrad in by both Ba» Hasieo and Colorado*

Tha aetimi will not baeoaa final nntil all Statao inrolaad ooacnr in tha 
ranuabariag*

Toara truly*

A* B* Johnaoa
Bxaeativa Oiraetor

B* J* Shodaa
Aaaiataat to tha Oiraetor

BJBifaa

oat Colorado* Boa Kaaico and Utah

71

Item 10.



Noves^er 4» 1969

To the Chief Administrative Officers 
of Arizona, Colorado, New MesdLeo and 
Utah:

Gentlemen:

At the meeting of the U. S* Route Nusd)erlng Subcommittee held 
October the 23th, In Philadelphia, the following action was taken on 
your requests for the renumbering of highways In the Four Comers area*

The following action was taken and approved by the Executive Committee 
on October the 26th, to designate as U. S. Hlgjtvay 160 that route from 
Cortez, Coloraod, south overlapping U* S* 666 to the Intersection of State 
Route 40, thence overlapping State Routes 40, 67 and 44 to the Intersection 
of U. S. 89 In Tuba City, Arizona.

To designate as U. S. 163 that route presently designated as U. S. 666 
from Gallpp, New Mexico, to Cortez, Colorado, and from Cortez, Colorado, to 
Crescent Junction, Utah, that section presently designated as U. S. 160.

This action would then assign an odd nunl>ered U. S. Route (163) to the 
major north-south route through this area and an even numbered U. S. Route 
(160) to the main east-west route through this area*

The addition of a route between Montlcello, Utah, and Kayenta, Arizona, 
was denied as not being developed to full geometric design standard and 
not being necessary for the proper direction of throu^ traffic.

It would be appreciated if you would advise If you concur In this 
recommendation so that the official records of the Association may be changed 
If you do*

Tours truly,

A* B. Johnson
Executive Director

H. J. Rhodes
Assistant to the Director

BJRtfms
72

Item 10.



Route 666 
 

Updated: December 2011 
 
1977 Description:  
Designated a State Route by *(A) Commission Action 5/20/77  
Traversing the alignment of US-666, replacing the remaining portion of the 1975 Description of 
State Route 9.  
 
1977 Description:  
From State Route 163 at Monticello east to the Utah-Colorado State line.  
 
1983 Description:  
From State Route 191 at Monticello east to the Utah-Colorado State line. Approved by the 1983 
Legislature effective May 10, 1983.  
 
1985 Legislature: Description remains the same.  
*(B)  
1986 Legislature: Description remains the same.  
1987 Legislature: Description remains the same.  
1988 Legislature: Description remains the same.  
1990 Legislature: Description remains the same.  
1992 Legislature: Description remains the same.  
1993 Legislature: Description remains the same.  
 
1994 Legislative Description:  
From Route 191 at Monticello east to the Utah-Colorado state line.  
 
1995 Legislature: Description remains the same.  
1996 Legislature: Description remains the same.  
1997 Legislature: Description remains the same.  
1998 Legislature: Description remains the same.  
1999 Legislature: Description remains the same.  
2000 Legislature: Description remains the same.  
2001 Legislature: Description remains the same. 
2002 Legislature: Description remains the same. 
 
(C). Commission Action July 18, 2003: 
 Re-designate SR-666 to SR-491. 
 
 
* Refers to resolution index page following. 

73

Item 10.



Route 666 
 

COUNTY/VOLUME & RESOLUTION NUMBER 
 

A. San Juan Co. 6/2  B. Multiple Co. 7/12 C. San Juan Co. 11/2 
 

DESCRIPTION OF RESOLUTION CHANGE 
 

(A). Re-designation -  US-666 re-designated as State Route 666. 
  
(B). Extension - U.S. 666 from its present termini in Monticello 

traversing coincident with U.S. 191, SR-95, SR-24, 
SR-119, and SR- 120 connecting with 1-70 near 
Richfield. 

 
(C). Re-designation - SR-666 changed to SR-491.  

 
 
 

74

Item 10.



75

Item 10.



76

Item 10.



77

Item 10.



78

Item 10.



79

Item 10.



80

Item 10.



81

Item 10.



82

Item 10.



83

Item 10.



84

Item 10.



85

Item 10.



86

Item 10.



87

Item 10.



88

Item 10.



89

Item 10.



90

Item 10.



91

Item 10.



92

Item 10.



93

Item 10.



94

Item 10.



95

Item 10.



96

Item 10.



97

Item 10.



98

Item 10.



99

Item 10.



100

Item 10.



101

Item 10.



102

Item 10.



103

Item 10.



104

Item 10.



105

Item 10.



106

Item 10.



107

Item 10.



108

Item 10.



109

Item 10.



110

Item 10.



111

Item 11.



112

Item 11.



113

Item 11.



114

Item 11.



115

Item 11.



116

Item 11.



117

Item 11.



118

Item 11.



119

Item 11.



120

Item 11.



121

Item 11.



rtL099 04/2020

April 30, 2020
Letter Issue Date Letter ID

Account Type

Account Number

Prop Central Assessed (PCA)

L1065700128

11693941-008-PCA
JOEY HOLLIDAY
HOLLIDAY CONSTRUCTION INC
HOLLIDAY CONSTRUCTION INC
PO BOX 502
BLANDING UT  84511-0502

Utah State Tax Commission
PROPERTY TAX DIVISION  210 N 1950 W SALT LAKE CITY UT  84134-9000 Website: tax.utah.gov

Notice of 2020 Estimated Assessment and Penalty
Sand & Gravel

Based on the information we received and Utah Tax Code, Title 59 Chapter 2, the Utah State Tax Commission has
assessed an estimated value of $675,893, as of January 1, 2020, on the property listed in the Notice of Valuation
portion of this notice. Based on Utah Tax Code, Title 59 Chapter 2, a penalty of 10% of the tax due up to a maximum of
$50,000 but not less than $100 will be assessed because your return was not filed by the due date. The amount of
penalty will be listed on the property tax assessment bill you will receive later in the year from the county or counties
where your property is located.

What To Do
•  Review all sections of this notice. If you agree with this notice, the county or counties where your property is located

will assess your tax based on the value(s) indicated in this notice.
•  If you disagree with the estimated valuation, based on Utah Tax Code, Title 59 Chapter 2, you may appeal the

value by filing a Valuation Appeal Form with the Appeals Unit of the Utah State Tax Commission on or before 
August 3, 2020. Get the Valuation Appeal Form at propertytax.utah.gov/forms or by calling 801-297-3600.

•  If you believe the penalty has been imposed improperly, based on Utah Tax Code, Title 59 Chapter 2, you may
appeal the penalty by filing a Penalty Appeal Form with the Appeals Unit of the Utah State Tax Commission on or
before August 3, 2020. Get the Penalty Appeal Form at propertytax.utah.gov/forms or by calling 801-297-3600.

•  Appeal forms must be emailed, mailed, faxed or delivered to:
Appeals Unit
Utah State Tax Commission
210 N 1950 W
Salt Lake City  UT 84134

Office: 801-297-3904
Fax: 801-297-3919
taxappeals@utah.gov
 

•  If you file an appeal, you may request a Division Conference to clarify and narrow the issues and problems. Please
call 801-297-3600 or 1-800-662-4335 ext 3600 to request and schedule a Division Conference. 

•  Based on Utah Tax Code, Title 59 Chapter 2, if you appeal with the Utah State Tax Commission, you must also file
a copy of the appeal with the County Auditor of the county or counties where your property is located.

Contact Information
If you have any questions, please call the Property Tax Division at 801-297-3600 or toll free at 1-800-662-4335 ext 3600
or send us a fax at 801-297-3699. You may also write to the Property Tax Division at the address at the top of this notice.

Respectfully,
Property Tax Division

The Utah Taxpayer Bill of Rights (Pub 2) is available on the Tax Commission's website tax.utah.gov or upon request. This publication
describes your rights and obligations and the Tax Commission's procedures for appeals, refund claims and collections.

If you need an accommodation under the Americans with Disabilities Act, contact the Tax Commission at 801-297-3811 or TDD
801-297-2020. Please allow three working days for a response. 122

Item 11.



Account Number: 11693941-008-PCA

Utah State Tax Commission
Property Tax Division

2020 Notice of Valuation
SUMMARY

Sand & Gravel
rtL099

HOLLIDAY CONSTRUCTION INC
County: San Juan

Income Alloc. TotalImprovementLand CWIPPersonal
$$94,537 $94,537$Tax Area: 001-0000 $ $

$$61,368 $61,368$Tax Area: 003-0000 $ $

$$330,879 $519,988$189,109Tax Area: 011-0000 $ $

$ $ $486,784 $ $189,109 $675,893County Totals:

Taxpayer Totals $ $189,109 $675,893$486,784$ $

Date Issued: April 30, 2020 Letter ID: L1065700128
123

Item 11.



HOLLIDAY CONSTRUCTION INC Account Number: 11693941-008-PCA

Utah State Tax Commission
Property Tax Division

2020 Notice of Valuation
DETAIL BY TAX AREA

Sand & Gravel
rtL099

County: San Juan
Tax Area: 001-0000 County Key: SA-2506

Name:71881 LIME RIDGE PITLocation Id
LIME RIDGE PITUnit Name Unit Id: 42586

PLSS: 41S 20E 16 SLBM
613160, 4120844UTME, UTMN:

Improvements CWIP AllocationLand Prs. Prop
$0 $94,537$0 $0$0

Total Taxable Value: $94,537

Total Tax Area Land Taxable Value: $0
$0Total Tax Area Improvement Taxable Value:

Total Tax Area Personal Property Taxable Value: $94,537
Total Tax Area CWIP Taxable Value: $0

$0Total Tax Area Allocated Income Taxable Value:

$94,537Total Taxable Value for Tax Area 001-0000

County: San Juan
Tax Area: 003-0000 County Key: SA-2512

Name:57821 BLANDING PITLocation Id
BLANDING PITUnit Name Unit Id: 57820

PLSS: 36S 22E 14 SLBM
635954, 4169519UTME, UTMN:

Improvements CWIP AllocationLand Prs. Prop
$0 $61,368$0 $0$0

Total Taxable Value: $61,368

Total Tax Area Land Taxable Value: $0
$0Total Tax Area Improvement Taxable Value:

Total Tax Area Personal Property Taxable Value: $61,368
Total Tax Area CWIP Taxable Value: $0

$0Total Tax Area Allocated Income Taxable Value:

$61,368Total Taxable Value for Tax Area 003-0000

County: San Juan
Tax Area: 011-0000 County Key:

Date Issued: April 30, 2020 Letter ID: L1065700128
124

Item 11.



HOLLIDAY CONSTRUCTION INC Account Number: 11693941-008-PCA

Utah State Tax Commission
Property Tax Division

2020 Notice of Valuation
DETAIL BY TAX AREA

Sand & Gravel
rtL099

$675,893Total for: HOLLIDAY CONSTRUCTION INC

Name:71880 BLUFF PITLocation Id
BLUFF PITUnit Name Unit Id: 42585

PLSS: 40S 22E 19 SLBM
628923, 4128422UTME, UTMN:

Improvements CWIP AllocationLand Prs. Prop
$0 $330,879$0 $189,109$0

Total Taxable Value: $519,988

Total Tax Area Land Taxable Value: $0
$0Total Tax Area Improvement Taxable Value:

Total Tax Area Personal Property Taxable Value: $330,879
Total Tax Area CWIP Taxable Value: $0

$189,109Total Tax Area Allocated Income Taxable Value:

$519,988Total Taxable Value for Tax Area 011-0000
$675,893Total for County: San Juan

Date Issued: April 30, 2020 Letter ID: L1065700128
125

Item 11.



126

Item 11.



127

Item 11.



128

Item 11.



129

Item 11.



130

Item 11.



131

Item 11.



132

Item 11.



133

Item 11.



134

Item 11.



135

Item 11.



136

Item 11.



137

Item 11.



138

Item 11.



139

Item 11.



140

Item 11.



141

Item 11.



142

Item 11.



143

Item 11.



 

 

 

Program Development � Telephone (801) 965-4129 � Facsimile (801) 965-4551 � www.udot.utah.gov 

Calvin Rampton Complex � 4501 South 2700 West � Mailing Address: P.O. Box 143600 � Salt Lake City, Utah  84114-3600  

 

       September 17th, 2020 

 

Clark Hawkins, 
District 1 - Road Supervisor 
San Juan County Road Dept. 
PO Box 188 
Monticello, UT 84535 
 

RE: Proposal to Vacate or Privatize Existing Class D Roads in San Juan County 

 

Dear Mr. Hawkins: 

 

 Thank you for your letter dated August 25, 2020 regarding a request for San Juan County to 

vacate or privatize existing Class D roads within the county located on the following properties: 

 

1. A segment of D2475 – Section 32, Township 27 South, Range 23 East, Salt Lake Base and 

Meridian;  approximately 0.099 miles in length. 

2. A segment of D2374 – Section 32, Township 27 South, Range 23 East, Salt Lake Base and 

Meridian;  approximately 0.179 miles in length. 

3. A segment of D0674 – Section 32, Township 27 South, Range 23 East, Salt Lake Base and 

Meridian;  approximately 0.223 miles in length. 

4. A segment of D2765 – Section 32, Township 27 South, Range 23 East, Salt Lake Base and 

Meridian;  approximately 0.682 miles in length. 

5. A segment of D2764 – Section 32, Township 27 South, Range 23 East, Salt Lake Base and 

Meridian;  approximately 0.913 miles in length. 

6. A segment of D2762 – Section 32, Township 27 South, Range 23 East, Salt Lake Base and 

Meridian;  approximately 1.36 miles in length. 

7. A segment of D2473 – Section 32, Township 27 South, Range 23 East, Salt Lake Base and 

Meridian;  approximately 0.09 miles in length. 

 

The Utah Department of Transportation (UDOT) has reviewed the proposal and Charles Stormont, 

Director of Right-of-Way, has provided the following response: 

 

“I write in response to your letter dated August 25, 2020 regarding the petition that San Juan County 

has received to vacate several Class D roads.  As co-owner of Class D roads, see Utah Code Section 72-1-

105, we appreciate the opportunity to provide a response to your inquiry.   
 
After review of the petition it appears that access to public lands would be eliminated if these roads 

were to be vacated.  From the information provided, we have not been able to determine how or if 

alternative access to these areas exists.  Pursuant to Utah Code 72-7-103 “a highway authority may not 

close a legal point of access to a public highway, unless: (a) the property has a reasonably equivalent 

access to the public highway after the legal access is closed; or (b) the highway authority acquires the 

legal point of access by gift, agreement, purchase, or eminent domain.”   
 

144

Item 12.



 

 

 

Program Development � Telephone (801) 965-4129 � Facsimile (801) 965-4551 � www.udot.utah.gov 

Calvin Rampton Complex � 4501 South 2700 West � Mailing Address: P.O. Box 143600 � Salt Lake City, Utah  84114-3600  

 

Without evidence that alternative access has been provided to these areas, UDOT is concerned that 

vacating these Class D roads would violate this statute and constitute an inverse condemnation.  We 

have also been informed that there was litigation concerning these roads in the past.  We would 

appreciate more information about that litigation and any Court orders that might apply to this area.   
 
The letter mentioned alternate routes.  If alternate routes could be obtained to provide the same historic 

access to public lands, across BLM lands or other potential routes, then maybe the impacts could be 

mitigated, and some of the roads could potentially be vacated.  Until alternate routes are established, 

these roads should remain public to provide access to public lands.”   
 
If you have any questions or concerns you can contact Charles Stormont at 385 226-8948 or email at 

castormont@utah.gov. 
 

 

      Sincerely, 

 

     

       

Chris Potter, P.E. 

      Local Government Programs Engineer 

 

CP/ 

 

Cc: Ben Huot, UDOT   Linda Hull, UDOT 

Ivan Hartle, UDOT  Charles Stormont, UDOT 

Jeff Ericson, UDOT  Jim Palmer, Assistant Attorney General 

Rick Torgerson, UDOT Kathleen Clarke, State Public Lands  

  

145

Item 12.



146

Item 12.



147

Item 12.



148

Item 12.



149

Item 12.



150

Item 12.



151

Item 12.



152

Item 12.



153

Item 12.



 

 

 

COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

MEETING DATE: October 6, 2020 

SUBMITTED BY: Kirk Benge, Director, Public Health 

TITLE: Consideration of an Agreement with the San Juan County Public Health 

Department and the State of Utah Health Department for Maternal and 

Child Health FFY 2021 – San Juan County Health Department  

RECOMMENDATION: Recommend Sign Contract 

 

SUMMARY 

The general purpose of this contract is funding for Maternal and Child Health Block Grant activities that 

address maternal and child health population needs. 

CONTRACT PERIOD: The service period of this contract is 10/01/2020 through 09/30/2025, unless 

terminated or extended by agreement in accordance with the terms and conditions of this contract. 

CONTRACT AMOUNT: The DEPARTMENT agrees to pay $8,080.00 in accordance with the 

provisions of this contract. This contract is funded with 100% federal funds, 0% state funds, and 0% 

other funds. 

HISTORY/PAST ACTION 

This is a continuation of the MCH Grant which has been renewed annually between the Utah Dept of 

Health and San Juan Public Health since 2015. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

These funds are included in the current proposed budget. 

154

Item 13.



Page 1 of 4 
 

                UTAH DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH CONTRACT 
                         PO Box 144003, Salt Lake City, Utah 84114 
                           288 North 1460 West, Salt Lake City, Utah 84116 

                        
 

 
 
2125207        212700505 
Department Log Number      State Contract Number 

 
 

1. CONTRACT NAME:  The name of this contract is Maternal and Child Health FFY 2021 – San Juan 

County Health Department 
 
 

2. CONTRACTING PARTIES:  This contract is between the Utah Department of Health 
(DEPARTMENT) and the following CONTRACTOR: 

 

PAYMENT ADDRESS MAILING ADDRESS 
San Juan County 
735 S 200 W, Ste 2 
Blanding UT, 84511 
 
Vendor ID: 06866HL 
Commodity Code: 99999 

San Juan County 
735 S 200 W, Ste 2 
Blanding UT, 84511 

 

3. GENERAL PURPOSE OF CONTRACT:  The general purpose of this contract is funding for Maternal 
and Child Health Block Grant activities that address maternal and child health population needs. 

 
 
4. CONTRACT PERIOD:  The service period of this contract is 10/01/2020 through 09/30/2025, unless 

terminated or extended by agreement in accordance with the terms and conditions of this contract.  
 

 
5. CONTRACT AMOUNT:  The DEPARTMENT agrees to pay $8,080.00 in accordance with the 

provisions of this contract.  This contract is funded with 100% federal funds, 0% state funds, and 0% 
other funds.   
 

6. CONTRACT INQUIRIES:  Inquiries regarding this Contract shall be directed to the following 
individuals: 

 
    
CONTRACTOR   DEPARTMENT 
 
Kirk Benge 
(435) 359-0038 
kbenge@sanjuancounty.org 
 

   
Family Health and Preparedness 
Maternal and Child Health 
Lynne Nilson 
(801) 694-3143 
lpnilson@utah.gov 

 

7. SUB – RECIPIENT INFORMATION: 

155

Item 13.



Page 2 of 4 
 

 
DUNS: 079815014  Indirect Cost Rate: 0%  

 

Federal Program Name: Maternal & Child Health 
Services 

Award Number: B04MC33870-01-04 

Name of Federal Awarding 
Agency: 

HHS – Health 

Resources and 
Services Administration 

Federal Award 
Identification Number: 

B04MC33870-01-04 

CFDA Title: Maternal & Child Health 
Services Block Grants 
to States 

Federal Award Date: 7/6/2020 

CFDA Number: 93.994 Funding Amount: $8080 
    
8. REFERENCE TO ATTACHMENTS INCLUDED AS PART OF THIS CONTRACT: 

 

Attachment A: Special Provisions 

Attachment B: MCH Financial Report and Instructions FFY2020 

Attachment C: MCH Services Report 

Attachment D: MCH Services Report Instructions 

Attachment E: NPM and SPM List 

Attachment F: MCH Workforce Development Resources 

 
9. DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED INTO THIS CONTRACT BY REFERENCE BUT NOT ATTACHED: 

A. All other governmental laws, regulations, or actions applicable to services provided herein. 
B. All Assurances and all responses to bids as provided by the CONTRACTOR. 
C. Utah Department of Health General Provisions and Business Associates Agreement currently in 

effect until 6/30/2023. 
 

 
10. This contract, its attachments, and all documents incorporated by reference constitute the entire 

agreement between the parties and supersedes all prior written or oral agreements between the 
parties relating to the subject matter of this contract. 

 

 

  

156

Item 13.



Page 3 of 4 
 

Contract with Utah Department of Health and San Juan County, Log # 2125207 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties enter into this agreement. 

 

CONTRACTOR      STATE   

 

 

 

By: ______________________    ________   By: ________________________    ________ 

Kenneth Maryboy Date Shari A. Watkins, C.P.A. Date 
County Commission Chair  Director, Office Fiscal Operations  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

157

Item 13.



Attachment A 
Special Provisions 
MCH Block Grant 

San Juan County Health Department 
October 1, 2020 through Sept 30, 2021  

I.       DEFINITIONS 
A. “ASQ” means Ages and Stages Questionnaire, by Paul Brookes Publishing. 
B. “ASQ SE-2” means the ASQ Social Emotional screen. 
C. “ASQ-3” means the ASQ overall development screen. 
D. “Department” means the Utah Department of Health, Division of Family Health and 

Preparedness, Bureau of Maternal and Child Health, Office of Home Visiting. 
E. “FFY 2020” means Federal Fiscal Year 2020, which is October 1, 2019 through September 

30, 2020. 
F. “FFY 2021” means Federal Fiscal Year 2021, which is October 1, 2020 through September 

30, 2021. 
G. “LHD General Provisions” means the agreement between the parties titled “FY2019-2023 

LHD General Provisions, Assurances, and Matching Requirements” effective July 1, 2018 
through June 30, 2023. 

H. “MCH” means Maternal and Child Health. 
I. “MCH Block Grant” means the Federal Title V Maternal and Child Health Block Grant. 
J. “MER” means the Monthly Expenditure Report, as detailed in the LHD General Provisions. 
K. “NPM” means National Performance Measures. 
L. “SPM” means State Performance Measures. 
M. “ESM” means Evidence Based Strategy Measure activities. 
N. “Sub-Recipient” means the San Juan County Health Department, as defined and described in 

the LHD General Provisions. 
O. “WIC” means the Utah Women, Infants, and Children’s program. 

II. PURPOSE 
A.  The purpose of this contract is to provide MCH Block Grant funding to Sub-Recipient to 

provide core public health services and activities that address maternal, infant, child and/or 
adolescent health population needs.  

III. SUB-RECIPIENT RESPONSIBILITIES 
A. Sub-Recipient shall bill for direct services on a sliding fee scale based on 0% pay for all 

families at or below 133% of the Federal Poverty Level. 
B. Sub-Recipient shall expend all funds received to provide public health services to maternal 

and child populations. 
C. Sub-Recipient shall select NPM and/or SPM identified during the 2020 MCH Summit and 

Needs Assessment process and set annual local goals and objectives that are appropriate for 
current work practices. 

D. Sub-Recipient shall use MCH Block Grant funding to select at least one or more NPM or 
SPM related to improving the health and well-being of women and/or infants as appropriate 
for current work practices: 
1. NPM 1 – Well woman visit: Percentage of women ages 18 through 44, with a preventive 

medical visit in the past year; 
2. NPM 4 – Breastfeeding:  

i. Percent of infants who are ever breastfed; and  

158

Item 13.



ii. Percent of infants breastfeed exclusively through 6 months; and/or 
3. SPM 1 – Increase the proportion of pregnant/postpartum women who are screened for 

depression.  
E. Sub-Recipient shall use MCH Block Grant funding to select NPM 6 and may select NPM 13.B 

or other SPM’s related to improving the health and well-being of children and/or youth 
(including infants, children and adolescents) as appropriate for current work practices: 
1. NPM 6 Developmental Screening: Percent of children ages through 35 months who 

received a developmental screening using a parent-completed screening tool (ASQ) in 
the past year. LHD may select one of three levels:  

i. Level 1 - Introduction to ASQ 
(a) Help promote ASQ training within their community and promote use of ASQ 

screening with Local partner organizations; and 
(b) Attend ECU Advisory Council Meetings;  

ii. Level 2 - Trained and ready to use ASQ (Level 1 done by default if in Level 2) 
(a) Attend and get trained in using the ASQ-3 (overall development screen) and 

ASQ SE-2 (Social Emotional screen);  
(1) It will become even more important to screen social emotional 

development as this pandemic continues); and 
(b) Use the online UDOH Brookes account to do screens to increase the data 

supporting LHD's, apply the screens with children, refer to appropriate 
services, and further the important data collection to support NPM 6; 

iii. Level 3 - Advanced ASQ Use (Levels 1 & 2 done by default if in Level 3); the 
LHD can work on any one or all of the following: 
(a) Establish and implement a schedule for screenings to be done at 6, 12, 18, 

and 25 months, and 3, 4, and 5 years of age; 
(b) Partner with LHD WIC office to access that population to screen children 

receiving WIC; and/or 
(c) Determine if codes 96110 and 96127 can be utilized by your LHD to bill for 

developmental screens. 
2. Meet with Family Youth and Outreach (FYO) staff regarding NPM 6 at least 4 times per 

year (may include FYO trainings, Nursing Director meetings and/or individual LHD 
meetings.)  

3. NPM 13.B Oral Health: Percent of children ages 1 through 17 who had a preventive 
dental visit in the past year. 

F. Sub-Recipient agrees to participate in at least one workforce development opportunity as 
appropriate for current work practices.  
1. Sub-Recipient may use the MCH Workforce Development resources included in this 

contract. 
G. Sub-recipient shall report all contract activities in the REDCap reporting system provided by 

the Dept. as required by Section VI.  
H. During FFY 2021, changes to specific objectives and activities shall be determined between 

Department and Sub-Recipient and included as contract amendments, as necessary. 

IV. DEPARTMENT TASKS 
A. Department agrees to provide: 

1. The REDCap reporting system for the MCH Block Grant Annual PLAN, Annual YEAR 
END REPORT, Financial Report, and MCH Services Report;  

i. Financial Report (see Attachment B) 
ii. MCH Services Report (see Attachment C) 

159

Item 13.



(a) MCH Services Report Instruction Sheet (Attachment D) 
2. Technical assistance, consultation, and in-services, as needed or requested for any 

aspect of this contract and for the REDCap reporting system; 
3. NPM and SPM list (see Attachment E); and 
4. MCH Workforce Development Resources (see Attachment F). 
5. Technical assistance, training and support for any NPM, SPM selected and NPM 6, 

including ESM activity suggestions. 
 

V. FUNDING AND PAYMENTS 
A. Department agrees to reimburse Sub-Recipient up to the maximum amount of the contract 

for actual expenditures made by the Sub-Recipient that are directly related to the program, as 
outlined in the LHD General Provisions. 
1. The funding for this contract is for expenses incurred during FFY 2021 (October 1, 2020 

through September 30, 2021). 
2. Maximum funding for FFY 2021 is $32,320. 
3. Department will reimburse Sub-Recipient reimbursements monthly, after Department 

review and approval of the MER.   
4. This contract may be amended to change the funding amount or programmatic 

requirements. 
5. If the contract is not amended to add additional funding, the contract shall terminate at 

the end of FFY 2021 (September 30, 2021). 

VI. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 
A. By November 1, 2020, Sub-Recipient shall: 

1. Submit an MCH Block Grant Annual PLAN for FFY 2021; 
2. Submit the MCH Block Grant Annual YEAR END REPORT for FFY 2020 (including 

reporting on activities completed for women, mothers, children, youth and families); and 
3. Report workforce development opportunities attended by relevant MCH staff for FFY 

2020, if applicable. (This is optional for the YEAR END REPORT for FFY 2020, but will 
be a contract requirement for FFY 2021). 

B. By January 31, 2021, Sub-Recipient shall: 
1. Submit the MCH Financial Report for FFY 2020; and 
2. Submit the MCH Service Report for FFY 2020.  

i. An Instruction sheet is included with the Service Report template.  
C. All Plans, Reports and other documents shall be submitted by Sub-Recipient using the 

REDCap Reporting System.  

VII. DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
A. If any dispute arises between the parties during the activities described by this Contract, the 

parties agree to seek a resolution through open communication and dialogue. 
B. Either party may request a conference to resolve a disputed issue (consistent with Utah 

Admin. Code R380-10-3, which supports dispute resolution at the lowest level possible). 
C. If a resolution cannot be reached, Department may bring supervisory personnel into the 

process to facilitate resolving issues and achieving agreement. 
D. The provisions in B. and C. of this Dispute Resolution section are not mandatory. 
E. If a dispute is not resolved within 30 days of Department decision, the Department’s decision 

is considered the “initial agency determination,” as defined by Utah Admin. Code R380-10-
2(3). 

160

Item 13.



F. These provisions do not preclude or affect the provisions, rights, limitations, or timelines for 
appealing Department actions that are provided or required by Utah Code §§ 26-23-2, 26-1-
4.1, or 26-1-7.1, Utah Admin. Code R380-10, or the Utah Administrative Procedures Act 
(Utah Code § 63G-4). 

G. In the event of any conflict between the Dispute Resolution provisions in the Special 
H. Provisions of this Contract with applicable law or rules, the provisions of the applicable law or 

rules shall control. 

161

Item 13.



HEALTH DEPARTMENT:

Contact Person: 

Phone Number: 

DUE BY JANUARY 31, 2020.   ANY QUESTIONS CALL (801)520-9674
BRANDI FRANDSEN, DIVISION OF FAMILY HEALTH AND PREPAREDNESS, PO BOX 142002, SLC, UT 84112-2002
BTFRANDS@UTAH.GOV

SECTION 1A
Please report your contract expenditures in this section.  Amounts reported should equal the amounts reported on your RSS/MER and cannot exceed your contract amount.

Pregnant Women Infants < 1 year Children 1-22 years Children with Special Health Care Needs All Others MCH Block Grant 
Actual Expenditures TOTAL

MCH BLOCK GRANT 
CONTRACT ACTUAL EXPENDITURES 

(H17 should not exceed contract amount.)
$0.00

SECTION 1B
Of the amounts reported in section 1A, please provide the percentages spent on types of services. Percentages reported must equal 100%.

Enabling Services Public Health Services and Systems
MCH Block Grant 
Types of Services

Percentages TOTAL
Preventive and Primary Care Services for all
Pregnant Women, Mothers, and Infants up to 

Age One
Preventative and Primary Care Services for 

Children Services for CSHCN

MCH BLOCK GRANT
TYPES OF SERVICE 

PERCENTAGES
0%

SECTION 2A
This section will be completed only if the amount reported on the MER exceeds your MCH contract.  Please identify the funds used (federal grant, fee type, local funds, etc.), and purpose of funds, for the expenditure amount exceeding the contract award.

Pregnant Women Infants < 1 year Children 1-22 years Children with Special Health Care Needs All Others NON-MCH Block Grant
 Annual Expenditures TOTAL

NON-MCH Block Grant Dollars (Federal Grants, Fee 
Type, State and Local Funds, etc.), and general 

purpose of funds.

Section 2B
This section will be completed only if the amount reported on the MER exceeds your MCH contract. Of the amounts reported in section 2A, please provide the percentages spent on types of services. Percentages reported must equal 100%.

Enabling Services Public Health Services and Systems
NON-MCH Block Grant

Types of Services
 Percentages TOTAL

Preventive and Primary Care Services for all
Pregnant Women, Mothers, and Infants up to 

Age One
Preventative and Primary Care Services for 

Children Services for CSHCN

NON-MCH BLOCK GRANT 
TYPES OF SERVICE 

PERCENTAGES
0%

TYPES OF SERVICES

Direct Services

(If additional lines are needed, please attach on a separate sheet)

TYPES OF INDVIDUALS SERVED

Attachment B

TYPES OF INDIVIDUALS SERVIED

TYPES OF SERVICES

Direct Services

MCH FINANCIAL REPORT - FFY 2020
Period Reported: October 1, 2019 to Sept 30, 2020

Attachment B MCH Financial Report FFY 2020
MCH Financial Report Page 1 of 1

162

Item 13.



Section 1A

Report your actual contract expenditures in this section.  

Amounts reported should equal the amounts reported on your RSS/MER and cannot exceed your contract am

Section 1B

Of the amounts reported in section 1A, please provide the percentages spent on types of services. 

Percentages reported must equal 100%

Types of Services are defined as:

Direct Services 
Direct services are preventive, primary, or specialty clinical services to pregnant women and children, including children 

with special health care needs, where MCH Services Block Grant funds are used to reimburse or fund providers for these 

services through a formal process similar to paying a medical billing claim or managed care contracts.  State reporting on 

direct services should not include the costs of clinical services which are delivered with Title V dollars but reimbursed by 

Medicaid, CHIP or other public or private payers.  Examples include, but are not limited to, preventive, primary or 

specialty care visits, emergency department visits, inpatient services, outpatient and inpatient mental and behavioral 

health services, prescription drugs, occupational and physical therapy, speech therapy, durable medical equipment and 

medical supplies, medical foods, dental care, and vision care

Enabling Services
Enabling services are non‐clinical services (i.e., not included as direct or public health services) that enable individuals to 

access health care and improve health outcomes where MCH Services Block Grant funds are used to finance these 

services.  Enabling services include, but are not limited to: case management, care coordination, referrals, 

translation/interpretation, transportation, eligibility assistance, health education for individuals or families, 

environmental health risk reduction, health literacy, and outreach.  State reporting on enabling services should not 

include the costs for enabling services that are reimbursed by Medicaid, CHIP, or other public and private payers.  This 

category may include salary and operational support to a clinic that enable individuals to access health care or improve 

health outcomes.  Examples include the salary of a public health nurse who provides prenatal care in a local clinic or 

compensation provided to a specialist pediatrician who provides services for children with special health care needs.

Public Health Services and Systems

Public health services and systems are activities and infrastructure to carry out the core public health functions of 

assessment, assurance, and policy development, and the 10 essential public health services.  Examples include the 

development of standards and guidelines, needs assessment, program planning, implementation, and evaluation, policy 

development, quality assurance and improvement, workforce development, and population‐based disease prevention and 

health promotion campaigns for services such as newborn screening, immunization, injury prevention, safe‐sleep education 

and anti‐smoking.  State reporting on public health services and systems should not include costs for direct clinical 

preventive services, such as immunization, newborn screening tests, or smoking cessation.

Section 2A

This section will be completed only if the amount reported on the MER exceeds your MCH contract. 

Example:

Identify the funds used (Examples: federal grant, fee type, local funds, etc.)

Identify the general purpose of funds used

Section 2B

If amounts are reported in section 2A, please provide the percentages spent on types of services. 

Percentages reported must equal 100%

Types of Services are defined in instructions for Section 1B.

INSTRUCTIONS

MCH FINANCIAL REPORT

The MCH Block Grant contract amount is $100,000. The MER report for the MCH Block Grant contract 

163

Item 13.



Attachment C 
MCH Services Report

Local Health Department Maternal and Child Service Report LHD

Service Dates Federal Fiscal Year October 1, 2019 to September 30, 2020

Name Phone

Pregnancy Related
Total Women Served Title XIX (Medicaid) Tile XXI (CHIP) Private Other None Unknown

Pregnancy Related Care 0

Family Planning
Total Served Title XIX (Medicaid) Tile XXI (CHIP) Private Other  None Unknown

Family Planning 0

Children
Total Children Served Title XIX (Medicaid) Tile XXI (CHIP) Private Other  None Unknown

Children Under 1 year old 0

Children 1 to 22 years of age Total Served Title XIX (Medicaid) Tile XXI (CHIP) Private Other  None Unknown
0

Due January 30, 2021 to rsatterfield@utah.gov

Health Insurance Coverage
Contact Email

164

Item 13.



Attachment D 
Maternal and Child Health Service Report Instructions 

 
Please complete information at top of form with names of Health District, the person who prepared the 
form and phone number. Where possible, provide actual counts of individuals broken down by the 
categories indicated. The report time is for Federal Fiscal Year October 1, 2019 to September 30, 2020 
 
Total Served: 
Total Served by Insurance Coverage: The number of unduplicated pregnant women, mothers and 

infants, and children served during the reporting period.  *The ’Total Served’ cell will provide 

you with the sum of Medicaid, CHIP, Private, Other, and Unknown cells. 

Health Coverage: Breakdown the numbers of “Total Served” by health coverage type.  

Pregnancy‐related Services:  

Total women served:  The unduplicated number of women who received any type of pregnancy‐related 

service.  *The ’Total Served’ cell will provide you with the sum of Medicaid, CHIP, Private, Other, 

and Unknown cells. 

Family Planning Services:  

Total served: The unduplicated number of individuals receiving family planning services. *The ’Total 

Served’ cell will provide you with the sum of Medicaid, CHIP, Private, Other, and Unknown cells. 

Infants under one year Served:  

Total infants served: the unduplicated number of infants less than 1 year of age who received services. 

*The ’Total Served’ cell will provide you with the sum of Medicaid, CHIP, Private, Other, and 

Unknown cells. 

Children 1 to 22 Served:  

Total children served: The number of children 1 to 22 years of age who received health services. *This 

cell is locked and will sum the Medicaid, CHIP, Private, Other, and Unknown cells. 

**Note: the Work Sheet will only allow you to fill in your name, phone, contact email, and counts within 

each insurance category (Pregnancy Related counts, Family Planning counts, and Children counts, of 

individuals served). 

Please ensure your total numbers equal the sum of the total reported in the ‘Total Served’ box, if they 

do not and all insurance categories are accurately reported then the balance must be entered into the 

‘Unknown’ box.  

If your LHD does not participate in a program please leave the section blank. 

Please email or fax your form by 01/31/2021 to rsatterfield@utah.gov  

165

Item 13.



Attachment E - NPM/SPM List

166

Item 13.



MCH Navigator
Maternal and Child Health Workforce Development 

https://mchb.hrsa.gov/training/mch-navigator-description.asp 

Training Purpose

The MCH NAVIGATOR provides state public health 
professionals with free, competency-based learning and tools 
on key skills necessary to carry out their daily work and 
improve the health of children and families. 

Format of Training

The MCH Navigator has practical learning strategies for 
every type of learner in multiple sessions: self-directed, 
semi-structured, self-reflective, and fast/interactive. 
Learners can track their learning through an online self-
assessment tool and participate in short bursts of group 
learning. 

Topics 

MCH101
MCH Orientations
MCH Conceptual Models
MCH Planning Cycle
Epidemiology
Evaluation
Management
Leadership
Communication

What/How to Use for 
MCH Purposes

Self-directed; quick finds; search page; A-Z
trainings; new trainings page
Semi-structured: Core MCH training bundles;
training spotlights; and training briefs
Self-reflective: Map learning pathway using our
online Self-Assessment that can identify
strengths and learning needs, and match
learning needs to appropriate trainings
Fast-interactive: Micro-learning programs –
short, ongoing bursts of learning

Examples of Specific 
Training Available

5-minute MCH
(https://www.mchnavigator.org/5min/) 

This fast-paced program combines learning opportunities with 
implementation strategies to provide: 

Short, focused learning modules and practice ideas to 
fit into busy schedules. 
The ability to utilize the online Self-Assessment to 
further refine learning needs. 
A paced schedule to reinforce learning over time.

Learning Guides  
(https://www.mchnavigator.org/trainings/) 

Access focused collections of learning guides based on key MCH 
and leadership competencies. Primers include MCH 
fundamentals such as MCH 101, orientations, conceptual 
models, and planning cycle as well as programmatic issues such 
as communication, management, and epidemiology. In addition, 
MCH Navigator Spotlights are prepared so that those who learn 
better through reading, viewing presentations, or through web 
tutorials can find material with which they are most comfortable. 

A-Z Trainings 
(https://www.mchnavigator.org/trainings/a-z.php) 

List and links to all training modules in alphabetical order. You 
can refine the list by typing a key word in the search box. For 
expanded search capabilities – including searching by MCH 
competency, topic, or presenter – use a special search page. 

Attachment F
MCH Workforce Development Resources

167

Item 13.



AMCHP Workforce and Leadership Development
Association of Maternal and Child Health Program 

http://www.amchp.org/programsandtopics/WorkforceDevelopment/Pages/Default.aspx 

 

 Training Purpose

The Workforce leadership development team’s mission 
is to support a diverse, effective, and competent 
workforce in state and territorial Title V programs. In an 
effort to strengthen the maternal and child health 
(MCH) workforce 

Format of Training

Skill development through formal and informal 
learning opportunities, experience, dialogue, role 
modeling, feedback, mentoring and coaching, and 
more. 

Topics 

Data 
Leadership competencies 
Life course 
Cultural competency 
Resiliency 
Evidence-based public health 

What/How to Use for 
MCH Purposes

AMCHP develops MCH leaders through the 
following resources and programs:  

The New Director Leaders Cohort 
Family Leaders Cohort  
Next Generation Leaders Cohort 
Epi P2P Cohort 
Webinars 
MCH Workforce Resources  

Examples of Specific 
Training Available

Essential Series modules 
Using data to inform MCH programs 
The postpartum period 
ROI for MCH: Return on investment in Maternal and 
Child Health 
Cultural competency 
Life course theory 
Communicating the value of developmental 
screening 
History of CYSHCN 

 MCH Leadership Competencies, 
visit http://leadership.mchtraining.net or download a PDF file 
of the 12 leadership competencies. 
MCH Workforce Development Solutions Series Domain 
(WSSDOM) 
How to enhance your state's performance management for 
the Title V Block Grant 
Resiliency:  tips and tricks on how to keep staff morale high 
Building Bench Strength Webinar Archive 
Building and Retaining a Resilient MCH Workforce for 
Tomorrow 
Leading in Changing Times Series 
National Collaborating Centre for Methods and Tools 
Modules Include: 

Quantitative Research Designs 
101:  Addressing  Practice-Based Issues in Public 
Health  
Introduction to Evidence-Informed Decision Making  
Searching for Research Evidence in Public Health  
Critical Appraisal of System Reviews 
Critical Appraisal of Intervention Studies 

AMCHP + CDC Skills-building Suite: Evidence-based Programs: 
Moving along the Continuum from Selection to Sustainability. 

168

Item 13.



Advancing Health Transformation
Maternal and Child Health Workforce Development Center 
https://www.mchnavigator.org/transformation/index.php 

 

 

 

 Training Purpose

The Center offers state and territorial Title V leaders and 
their partners training, collaborative learning, coaching and 
consultation in implementing health transformation using 
a variety of learning platforms. 

Format of Training

Online, interdisciplinary course and additional 
learning resources. 

Areas of Focus
Access to Care 
Change Management & 
Adaptive Leadership 
Evidence-based Decision 
Making 
Family Engagement 
Health Equity 
Quality Improvement 
Systems Integration 
Pipeline Program (to enhance 
training & networking 
opportunities for graduate 
and undergraduate students 

What/How to Use for 
MCH Purposes

Title V Transformation Tools are tied to 
National Performance Measures. 
Introduction and populations covered 
include:  
o General foundational skills 
o Women’s Maternal Health 
o Perinatal/Infant Health  
o Child Health 
o Adolescent Health 

Examples of Specific 
Training Available

Each Area of Focus covers 2 or 3 NPMs and by 
accessing each topic, there are online learning 
materials, resources, and evidence-based strategies 
and programs that support knowledge sets and skill 
needed to advance each NPM 

New: MCH Mini-course in Resiliency and Adaptive 
Leadership: short recordings in 10 parts. It steps 
through 5 leadership tools: 
         1) Leading into creative problem-solving  

2) Stepping forward as a leader (with or without   
positional authority) 

         3) Thinking big 
4) Recognizing change preferences and change 

processes 
         5) Phasing your change 
 
Customized workforce development: provides team-
tailored skills development and assistance to Title V 
agencies tackling tough health transformation 
challenges. 
 
Partnership Opportunities: include and 8-month 
coach-supported cohort experience, customized 
short-term partnerships and in internship program 
that matches agencies with student interested in Title 
V experience. 

169

Item 13.



M
at

er
na

l a
nd

 C
hi

ld
 H

ea
lth

 T
ra

in
in

g 
W

eb
sit

es
 

Co
m

pi
le

d 
by

 th
e 

Ut
ah

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f H
ea

lth
 M

CH
 B

ur
ea

u 
 M

ay
 4

, 2
02

0 
 O

rg
an

iza
tio

n 
W

eb
sit

e 
Ti

tle
 o

f T
ra

in
in

g 
Pr

og
ra

m
 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 p
ur

po
se

 
Fo

rm
at

 o
f T

ra
in

in
g 

M
at

er
na

l a
nd

 C
hi

ld
 H

ea
lth

 W
or

kf
or

ce
 

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

ht
tp

s:/
/m

ch
b.

hr
sa

.g
ov

/t
ra

in
in

g/
m

ch
-

na
vi

ga
to

r-d
es

cr
ip

tio
n.

as
p 

M
CH

 N
av

ig
at

or
 

Th
e 

M
CH

 N
AV

IG
AT

O
R 

pr
ov

id
es

 st
at

e 
pu

bl
ic 

he
al

th
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

na
ls 

w
ith

 fr
ee

, 
co

m
pe

te
nc

y-
ba

se
d 

le
ar

ni
ng

 a
nd

 to
ol

s o
n 

ke
y 

sk
ill

s n
ec

es
sa

ry
 to

 ca
rr

y 
ou

t t
he

ir 
da

ily
 w

or
k 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

he
al

th
 o

f 
ch

ild
re

n 
an

d 
fa

m
ili

es
. 

Th
e 

M
CH

 N
av

ig
at

or
 h

as
 p

ra
ct

ica
l 

le
ar

ni
ng

 st
ra

te
gi

es
 fo

r e
ve

ry
 ty

pe
 o

f 
le

ar
ne

r i
n 

m
ul

tip
le

 se
ss

io
ns

: s
el

f-
di

re
ct

ed
, s

em
i-s

tr
uc

tu
re

d,
 se

lf-
re

fle
ct

iv
e,

 
an

d 
fa

st
/in

te
ra

ct
iv

e.
 Le

ar
ne

rs
 ca

n 
tr

ac
k 

th
ei

r l
ea

rn
in

g 
th

ro
ug

h 
an

 o
nl

in
e 

se
lf-

as
se

ss
m

en
t t

oo
l a

nd
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

e 
in

 sh
or

t 
bu

rs
ts

 o
f g

ro
up

 le
ar

ni
ng

. 
To

pi
cs

 C
ov

er
ed

 
 

W
ha

t/
Ho

w
 to

 U
se

 fo
r M

CH
 p

ur
po

se
s  

 
M

CH
10

1 
M

CH
 O

rie
nt

at
io

ns
 

M
CH

 C
on

ce
pt

ua
l M

od
el

s 
M

CH
 P

la
nn

in
g 

Cy
cl

e 
Ep

id
em

io
lo

gy
 

Ev
al

ua
tio

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Le

ad
er

sh
ip

 
Co

m
m

un
ica

tio
n  

Se
lf-

di
re

ct
ed

; q
ui

ck
 fi

nd
s; 

se
ar

ch
 p

ag
e;

 A
-Z

 tr
ai

ni
ng

s; 
ne

w
 tr

ai
ni

ng
s p

ag
e 

Se
m

i-s
tr

uc
tu

re
d:

 C
or

e 
M

CH
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 b

un
dl

es
; t

ra
in

in
g 

sp
ot

lig
ht

s; 
an

d 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 b

rie
fs

 
Se

lf-
re

fle
ct

iv
e:

 M
ap

 le
ar

ni
ng

 p
at

hw
ay

 u
sin

g 
ou

r o
nl

in
e 

Se
lf-

As
se

ss
m

en
t t

ha
t c

an
 id

en
tif

y 
st

re
ng

th
s a

nd
 le

ar
ni

ng
 n

ee
ds

, a
nd

 m
at

ch
 

le
ar

ni
ng

 n
ee

ds
 to

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 tr
ai

ni
ng

s 
Fa

st
-in

te
ra

ct
iv

e:
 M

icr
o-

le
ar

ni
ng

 p
ro

gr
am

s –
 sh

or
t, 

on
go

in
g 

bu
rs

ts
 o

f l
ea

rn
in

g 

 O
rg

an
iza

tio
n 

W
eb

sit
e 

Ti
tle

 o
f T

ra
in

in
g 

Pr
og

ra
m

 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
 p

ur
po

se
 

Fo
rm

at
 o

f T
ra

in
in

g 
M

at
er

na
l a

nd
 C

hi
ld

 H
ea

lth
 W

or
kf

or
ce

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t: 
Ad

va
nc

in
g 

He
al

th
 T

ra
ns

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ht

tp
s:/

/w
w

w
.m

ch
na

vi
ga

to
r.o

rg
/t

ra
ns

fo
rm

at
io

n/
in

de
x.

ph
p 

 

M
CH

 N
av

ig
at

or
 a

nd
 N

at
io

na
l 

M
at

er
na

l a
nd

 C
hi

ld
 H

ea
lth

 
W

or
kf

or
ce

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t C
en

te
r 

Th
e C

en
te

r o
ffe

rs 
sta

te
 an

d 
te

rri
to

ria
l 

Tit
le 

V 
lea

de
rs 

an
d t

he
ir 

pa
rtn

er
s 

tra
in

in
g, 

co
lla

bo
ra

tiv
e l

ea
rn

in
g, 

co
ac

hi
ng

 an
d c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
in

 
im

pl
em

en
tin

g h
ea

lth
 tr

an
sfo

rm
at

io
n 

us
in

g a
 va

rie
ty

 of
 le

ar
ni

ng
 p

lat
fo

rm
s. 

O
nl

in
e,

 in
te

rd
isc

ip
lin

ar
y 

co
ur

se
 a

nd
 

ad
di

tio
na

l l
ea

rn
in

g 
re

so
ur

ce
s. 

To
pi

cs
 C

ov
er

ed
 

W
ha

t/
Ho

w
 to

 U
se

 fo
r M

CH
 p

ur
po

se
s  

 
Ac

ce
ss

 to
 C

ar
e 

Ch
an

ge
 M

an
ag

em
en

t &
 A

da
pt

iv
e 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 

Ev
id

en
ce

-b
as

ed
 D

ec
isi

on
 M

ak
in

g 
Fa

m
ily

 E
ng

ag
em

en
t 

He
al

th
 E

qu
ity

 
Q

ua
lit

y 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
Sy

st
em

s I
nt

eg
ra

tio
n 

Pi
pe

lin
e 

Pr
og

ra
m

 (t
o 

en
ha

nc
e 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 &
 n

et
w

or
ki

ng
 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 fo
r g

ra
du

at
e 

an
d 

un
de

rg
ra

du
at

e 
st

ud
en

ts
) 

Ti
tle

 V
 T

ra
ns

fo
rm

at
io

n 
To

ol
s a

re
 ti

ed
 to

 N
at

io
na

l P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 M
ea

su
re

s. 
 

In
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

an
d 

po
pu

la
tio

ns
 co

ve
re

d 
in

clu
de

:  
o

Ge
ne

ra
l f

ou
nd

at
io

na
l s

ki
lls

 
o

W
om

en
’s 

M
at

er
na

l H
ea

lth
 

o
Pe

rin
at

al
/In

fa
nt

 H
ea

lth
  

o
Ch

ild
 H

ea
lth

 
o

Ad
ol

es
ce

nt
 H

ea
lth

 
 

170

Item 13.



M
at

er
na

l a
nd

 C
hi

ld
 H

ea
lth

 T
ra

in
in

g 
W

eb
sit

es
 

Co
m

pi
le

d 
by

 th
e 

Ut
ah

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f H
ea

lth
 M

CH
 B

ur
ea

u 
 M

ay
 4

, 2
02

0 
 O

rg
an

iza
tio

n 
W

eb
sit

e 
Ti

tle
 o

f T
ra

in
in

g 
Pr

og
ra

m
 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 p
ur

po
se

 
Fo

rm
at

 o
f T

ra
in

in
g 

AM
CH

P 
 

ht
tp

://
w

w
w

.a
m

ch
p.

or
g/

 
/W

or
kf

or
ce

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t/

 
/D

ef
au

lt.
as

px
 

W
or

kf
or

ce
 a

nd
 Le

ad
er

sh
ip

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Th

e 
W

or
kf

or
ce

 le
ad

er
sh

ip
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

te
am

’s 
m

iss
io

n 
is 

to
 su

pp
or

t a
 d

iv
er

se
, 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e,
 a

nd
 co

m
pe

te
nt

 w
or

kf
or

ce
 in

 
st

at
e 

an
d 

te
rr

ito
ria

l T
itl

e 
V 

pr
og

ra
m

s. 
In

 
an

 e
ffo

rt
 to

 st
re

ng
th

en
 th

e 
m

at
er

na
l a

nd
 

ch
ild

 h
ea

lth
 (M

CH
) w

or
kf

or
ce

 

Sk
ill

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t t
hr

ou
gh

 fo
rm

al
 a

nd
 

in
fo

rm
al

 le
ar

ni
ng

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s, 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e,

 d
ia

lo
gu

e,
 ro

le
 m

od
el

in
g,

 
fe

ed
ba

ck
, m

en
to

rin
g 

an
d 

co
ac

hi
ng

, a
nd

 
m

or
e.

 T
he

y 
de

ve
lo

p 
M

CH
 le

ad
er

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

re
so

ur
ce

s a
nd

 
pr

og
ra

m
s: 

 Th
e 

Ne
w

 D
ire

ct
or

 Le
ad

er
s 

Co
ho

rt
 

Fa
m

ily
 Le

ad
er

s C
oh

or
t  

Ne
xt

 G
en

er
at

io
n 

Le
ad

er
s 

Co
ho

rt
 

Ep
i P

2P
 C

oh
or

t 
W

eb
in

ar
s 

M
CH

 W
or

kf
or

ce
 R

es
ou

rc
es

  

To
pi

cs
 C

ov
er

ed
 

W
ha

t/
Ho

w
 to

 U
se

 fo
r M

CH
 p

ur
po

se
s  

 
Da

ta
 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 co

m
pe

te
nc

ie
s 

Lif
e 

co
ur

se
 

Cu
ltu

ra
l c

om
pe

te
nc

y 
Re

sil
ie

nc
y 

Ev
id

en
ce

-b
as

ed
 p

ub
lic

 h
ea

lth
 

Es
se

nt
ia

l S
er

ie
s m

od
ul

es
 

Us
in

g 
da

ta
 to

 in
fo

rm
 M

CH
 p

ro
gr

am
s 

Th
e 

po
st

pa
rt

um
 p

er
io

d 
RO

I f
or

 M
CH

: R
et

ur
n 

on
 in

ve
st

m
en

t i
n 

M
at

er
na

l a
nd

 C
hi

ld
 H

ea
lth

 
Cu

ltu
ra

l c
om

pe
te

nc
y 

Lif
e 

co
ur

se
 th

eo
ry

 
Co

m
m

un
ica

tin
g 

th
e 

va
lu

e 
of

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ta
l s

cr
ee

ni
ng

 
Hi

st
or

y 
of

 C
YS

HC
N 

 M
CH

 Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 C

om
pe

te
nc

ie
s, 

vi
sit

 h
tt

p:
//

le
ad

er
sh

ip
.m

ch
tr

ai
ni

ng
.n

et
 o

r d
ow

nl
oa

d 
a 

PD
F 

fil
e 

of
 th

e 
12

 le
ad

er
sh

ip
 

co
m

pe
te

nc
ie

s. 
M

CH
 W

or
kf

or
ce

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t S
ol

ut
io

ns
 S

er
ie

s D
om

ai
n 

(W
SS

DO
M

) 
Ho

w
 to

 e
nh

an
ce

 y
ou

r s
ta

te
's 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 m

an
ag

em
en

t f
or

 th
e 

Ti
tle

 V
 B

lo
ck

 G
ra

nt
 

Re
sil

ie
nc

y:
  t

ip
s a

nd
 tr

ick
s o

n 
ho

w
 to

 k
ee

p 
st

af
f m

or
al

e 
hi

gh
 

Bu
ild

in
g 

Be
nc

h 
St

re
ng

th
 W

eb
in

ar
 A

rc
hi

ve
 

Bu
ild

in
g 

an
d 

Re
ta

in
in

g 
a 

Re
sil

ie
nt

 M
CH

 W
or

kf
or

ce
 fo

r T
om

or
ro

w
 

Le
ad

in
g 

in
 C

ha
ng

in
g 

Ti
m

es
 S

er
ie

s 
Na

tio
na

l C
ol

la
bo

ra
tin

g 
Ce

nt
re

 fo
r M

et
ho

ds
 a

nd
 T

oo
ls 

M
od

ul
es

 In
cl

ud
e:

 
Q

ua
nt

ita
tiv

e 
Re

se
ar

ch
 D

es
ig

ns
 1

01
:  

Ad
dr

es
sin

g 
 P

ra
ct

ice
-B

as
ed

 Is
su

es
 in

 P
ub

lic
 H

ea
lth

  
In

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
to

 E
vi

de
nc

e-
In

fo
rm

ed
 D

ec
isi

on
 M

ak
in

g 
 

Cr
iti

ca
l A

pp
ra

isa
l o

f I
nt

er
ve

nt
io

n 
St

ud
ie

s 
AM

CH
P 

+ 
CD

C 
Sk

ill
s-

bu
ild

in
g 

Su
ite

: E
vi

de
nc

e-
ba

se
d 

Pr
og

ra
m

s: 
M

ov
in

g 
al

on
g 

th
e 

Co
nt

in
uu

m
 fr

om
 S

el
ec

tio
n 

to
 S

us
ta

in
ab

ili
ty

. 

171

Item 13.



M
at

er
na

l a
nd

 C
hi

ld
 H

ea
lth

 T
ra

in
in

g 
W

eb
sit

es
 

Co
m

pi
le

d 
by

 th
e 

Ut
ah

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f H
ea

lth
 M

CH
 B

ur
ea

u 
 M

ay
 4

, 2
02

0 
 O

rg
an

iza
tio

n 
W

eb
sit

e 
Ti

tle
 o

f T
ra

in
in

g 
Pr

og
ra

m
 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 p
ur

po
se

 
Fo

rm
at

 o
f T

ra
in

in
g 

Ci
ty

M
at

CH
 Le

ar
ni

ng
 N

et
w

or
k 

ht
tp

s:/
/w

w
w

.c
ity

m
at

ch
.o

rg
/1

50
/ 

Ci
ty

M
at

CH
 Le

ar
ni

ng
 N

et
w

or
k 

Ci
ty

M
at

CH
 b

el
ie

ve
s i

n 
a 

st
ro

ng
 n

et
w

or
k 

of
 p

ub
lic

 h
ea

lth
 le

ad
er

s w
or

ki
ng

 to
ge

th
er

 
to

 ta
ck

le
 th

e 
m

os
t p

re
ss

in
g 

M
CH

 
ch

al
le

ng
es

 b
y 

gr
ow

in
g 

th
e 

sk
ill

s, 
kn

ow
le

dg
e 

an
d 

ab
ili

tie
s o

f a
ll 

M
CH

 
pr

of
es

sio
na

ls 
w

or
ki

ng
 a

t t
he

 lo
ca

l l
ev

el
. 

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 w

eb
in

ar
 se

rie
s p

ro
vi

de
s 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 o
n 

em
er

gi
ng

 M
CH

 is
su

es
 a

nd
 

ne
ed

s i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 b

y 
Ci

ty
M

at
CH

 m
em

be
rs

. 

To
pi

cs
 C

ov
er

ed
 

W
ha

t/
Ho

w
 to

 U
se

 fo
r M

CH
 p

ur
po

se
s  

 
In

 2
01

9:
 

Ne
tw

or
ki

ng
 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l 
Al

co
ho

l a
nd

 d
ru

g 
us

e 
du

rin
g 

pr
eg

na
nc

y 
Po

lic
y 

10
1 

In
te

rn
al

 ra
cia

l i
ne

qu
ity

 

20
17

-2
01

9 
w

eb
in

ar
 se

rie
s a

rc
hi

ve
s o

n 
Yo

ut
ub

e 
20

19
 w

eb
in

ar
s i

nc
lu

de
: 

Ne
tw

or
ki

ng
 fo

r P
ub

lic
 H

ea
lth

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

ls 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l H

op
e 

Re
du

ce
s S

tr
es

s a
nd

 Im
pr

ov
es

 H
ea

lth
 o

f M
ot

he
rs

  
Po

lic
ie

s T
ar

ge
tin

g 
Al

co
ho

l/D
ru

g 
Us

e 
Du

rin
g 

Pr
eg

na
nc

y 
&

 T
he

ir 
Im

pa
ct

s 
Po

lic
y 

10
1:

 U
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 P

ol
icy

 a
nd

 Im
pa

ct
s 

Ge
tt

in
g 

O
ur

 H
ou

se
 in

 O
rd

er
: A

dd
re

ss
in

g 
In

te
rn

al
 R

ac
ia

l E
qu

ity
 

 O
rg

an
iza

tio
n 

W
eb

sit
e 

Ti
tle

 o
f T

ra
in

in
g 

Pr
og

ra
m

 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
 p

ur
po

se
 

Fo
rm

at
 o

f T
ra

in
in

g 

Na
tio

na
l I

ns
tit

ut
e 

fo
r C

hi
ld

re
n’

s H
ea

lth
 Q

ua
lit

y 
(N

IC
HQ

) 
ht

tp
s:

//
w

w
w

.n
ich

q.
or

g/
re

so
ur

ce
s/

w
eb

in
ar

s 

No
t a

 sp
ec

ifi
c t

ra
in

in
g 

pr
og

ra
m

 
bu

t h
av

e 
a 

se
rie

s o
f w

eb
in

ar
s 

w
ith

 to
pi

cs
 sp

ec
ifi

c t
o 

M
CH

 
in

te
re

st
s. 

NI
CH

Q
’s 

m
iss

io
n 

is 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 
be

tt
er

 h
ea

lth
 o

ut
co

m
es

 fo
r 

ch
ild

re
n 

W
eb

in
ar

s 

To
pi

cs
 C

ov
er

ed
  

W
ha

t/
Ho

w
 to

 U
se

 fo
r M

CH
 p

ur
po

se
s  

Br
ea

st
fe

ed
in

g 
 

Ea
rly

 ch
ild

ho
od

 
He

al
th

 e
qu

ity
  

In
fa

nt
 h

ea
lth

 
Q

ua
lit

y 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
Si

ck
le

 ce
ll 

di
se

as
e 

 

Sa
m

pl
e 

of
 ti

tle
s o

f w
eb

in
ar

s:
 

Fr
om

 A
w

ar
en

es
s t

o 
Ac

tio
n:

 S
tr

at
eg

ie
s f

or
 C

om
ba

tin
g 

Ra
cis

m
 in

 H
ea

lth
 S

ys
te

m
s  

M
ov

in
g 

th
e 

Ne
ed

le
 o

n 
He

al
th

 E
qu

ity
: T

w
o 

Ex
pe

rt
s S

ha
re

 S
uc

ce
ss

fu
l P

ro
gr

am
s a

nd
 Le

ss
on

s L
ea

rn
ed

  
M

at
er

na
l D

ep
re

ss
io

n:
 E

ve
ry

on
e 

Ca
n 

Pl
ay

 a
 R

ol
e 

to
 H

el
p 

Fa
m

ili
es

 T
hr

iv
e

Ea
rly

 C
hi

ld
ho

od
 a

nd
 M

ed
ica

id
 1

01
: T

he
 T

ip
 o

f t
he

 Ic
eb

er
g 

 
Im

pr
ov

in
g 

O
ur

 A
pp

ro
ac

h:
 B

et
te

r C
on

ve
rs

at
io

ns
 a

bo
ut

 B
re

as
tfe

ed
in

g 
O

pi
oi

d 
Us

e 
Di

so
rd

er
 in

 P
re

gn
an

cy
 a

nd
 N

eo
na

ta
l A

bs
tin

en
ce

 S
yn

dr
om

e 
En

ga
gi

ng
 F

am
ili

es
 fr

om
 D

iv
er

se
 B

ac
kg

ro
un

ds
 w

ith
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
ta

l S
cr

ee
ni

ng
 a

nd
 C

hi
ld

 W
el

l-B
ei

ng
  

 

172

Item 13.



M
at

er
na

l a
nd

 C
hi

ld
 H

ea
lth

 T
ra

in
in

g 
W

eb
sit

es
 

Co
m

pi
le

d 
by

 th
e 

Ut
ah

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f H
ea

lth
 M

CH
 B

ur
ea

u 
 M

ay
 4

, 2
02

0 
 O

rg
an

iza
tio

n 
W

eb
sit

e 
Ti

tle
 o

f T
ra

in
in

g 
Pr

og
ra

m
 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 p
ur

po
se

 
Fo

rm
at

 o
f T

ra
in

in
g 

As
so

cia
tio

n 
of

 S
ch

oo
ls 

&
 P

ro
gr

am
s o

f 
Pu

bl
ic 

He
al

th
 

ht
tp

s:/
/w

w
w

.a
sp

ph
.o

rg
/s

tu
dy

/m
at

er
na

l-
ch

ild
-h

ea
lth

/ 

No
t a

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 p
ro

gr
am

 b
ut

 id
en

tif
ie

s 
ac

ad
em

ic 
de

gr
ee

s i
n 

pu
bl

ic 
he

al
th

 w
ith

 a
 

M
at

er
na

l a
nd

 C
hi

ld
 H

ea
lth

 fo
cu

s 

Th
is 

in
te

rd
isc

ip
lin

ar
y 

fie
ld

 se
ek

s a
ns

w
er

s 
fo

r t
he

 co
m

pl
ex

 h
ea

lth
 co

ns
id

er
at

io
ns

 
re

la
tin

g 
to

 w
om

en
, p

re
gn

an
cy

, 
re

pr
od

uc
tio

n,
 a

nd
 in

fa
nt

 a
nd

 c
hi

ld
 w

el
l-

be
in

g.
 S

tu
de

nt
s w

ho
 co

nc
en

tr
at

e 
in

 
m

at
er

na
l a

nd
 ch

ild
 h

ea
lth

 a
re

 in
te

re
st

ed
 

in
 th

e 
in

te
rs

ec
tio

n 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

es
e 

po
pu

la
tio

ns
, a

nd
 h

ow
 g

ov
er

nm
en

ts
 a

nd
 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 ca
n 

w
or

k 
to

ge
th

er
 to

 
pr

ot
ec

t a
nd

 a
dv

an
ce

 th
e 

he
al

th
 o

f 
w

om
en

 a
nd

 ch
ild

re
n 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
w

or
ld

. 

Ac
ad

em
ic 

de
gr

ee
s i

n 
Pu

bl
ic 

He
al

th
 

To
pi

cs
 C

ov
er

ed
 

W
ha

t/
Ho

w
 to

 U
se

 fo
r M

CH
 p

ur
po

se
s  

 
Sa

m
pl

e 
co

ur
se

s:
 

In
fa

nt
, C

hi
ld

, a
nd

 M
at

er
na

l 
He

al
th

 in
 D

ev
el

op
in

g 
Co

un
tr

ie
s 

In
tr

af
am

ily
 V

io
le

nc
e 

Ad
vo

ca
cy

, H
um

an
 R

ig
ht

s, 
an

d 
M

ig
ra

tio
ns

 

Ca
n 

id
en

tif
y 

ac
ad

em
ic 

pr
og

ra
m

s i
n 

m
at

er
na

l a
nd

 ch
ild

 h
ea

lth
 

 O
rg

an
iza

tio
n 

W
eb

sit
e 

Ti
tle

 o
f T

ra
in

in
g 

Pr
og

ra
m

 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
 p

ur
po

se
 

Fo
rm

at
 o

f T
ra

in
in

g 

As
so

cia
tio

n 
of

 S
ta

te
 a

nd
 T

er
rit

or
ia

l H
ea

lth
 O

ffi
cia

ls 
AS

TH
O

 C
on

ne
ct

s: 
A 

Vi
rt

ua
l L

ea
rn

in
g 

se
rie

s f
or

 
pu

bl
ic 

he
al

th
 le

ad
er

s:
 

ht
tp

s:/
/w

w
w

.a
st

ho
.o

rg
/G

en
er

icK
ey

/ 
Ge

ne
ric

Ke
yA

rc
hi

ve
.a

sp
x?

ca
tid

=7
26

4&
fo

ld
er

id
=5

16
2 

 

No
t a

 sp
ec

ifi
c t

ra
in

in
g 

pr
og

ra
m

 b
ut

 
ha

ve
 a

 se
rie

s o
f w

eb
in

ar
s w

ith
 to

pi
cs

 
sp

ec
ifi

c t
o 

M
CH

 in
te

re
st

s. 

AS
TH

O
 is

 th
e 

na
tio

na
l n

on
pr

of
it 

or
ga

ni
za

tio
n 

re
pr

es
en

tin
g 

pu
bl

ic 
he

al
th

 a
ge

nc
ie

s i
n 

th
e 

Un
ite

d 
St

at
es

, 
th

e 
U.

S.
 T

er
rit

or
ie

s, 
an

d 
th

e 
Di

st
ric

t 
of

 C
ol

um
bi

a,
 a

nd
 o

ve
r 1

00
,0

00
 p

ub
lic

 
he

al
th

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

ls 
th

es
e 

ag
en

ci
es

 
em

pl
oy

. A
ST

HO
’s 

m
iss

io
n 

is 
to

 
su

pp
or

t, 
eq

ui
p,

 a
nd

 a
dv

oc
at

e 
fo

r 
st

at
e 

an
d 

te
rr

ito
ria

l h
ea

lth
 o

ffi
cia

ls 
in

 
th

ei
r w

or
k 

of
 a

dv
an

cin
g 

th
e 

pu
bl

ic
’s 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 w

el
l-b

ei
ng

. 

W
eb

in
ar

s 

To
pi

cs
 C

ov
er

ed
 

W
ha

t/
Ho

w
 to

 U
se

 fo
r M

CH
 p

ur
po

se
s  

 
Su

bs
ta

nc
e 

m
isu

se
/o

pi
oi

ds
 

Ac
ce

ss
 to

 ca
re

/c
lin

ica
l s

er
vi

ce
s 

He
al

th
 e

qu
ity

/h
ea

lth
 d

isp
ar

iti
es

 
Ad

ve
rs

e 
ch

ild
ho

od
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

es
 

Sa
m

pl
e 

w
eb

in
ar

s a
va

ila
bl

e:
 

Pr
im

ar
y 

Pr
ev

en
tio

n 
of

 A
dv

er
se

 C
hi

ld
ho

od
 E

xp
er

ie
nc

es
 

Le
ad

 E
xp

os
ur

e 
an

d 
Im

pa
ct

s o
n 

Ea
rly

 B
ra

in
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Us
e 

of
 T

el
eh

ea
lth

 fo
r S

ub
st

an
ce

 U
se

 D
iso

rd
er

 T
re

at
m

en
t i

n 
M

at
er

na
l a

nd
 C

hi
ld

 P
op

ul
at

io
ns

 

173

Item 13.



M
at

er
na

l a
nd

 C
hi

ld
 H

ea
lth

 T
ra

in
in

g 
W

eb
sit

es
 

Co
m

pi
le

d 
by

 th
e 

Ut
ah

 D
ep

ar
tm

en
t o

f H
ea

lth
 M

CH
 B

ur
ea

u 
 M

ay
 4

, 2
02

0 
 To

ba
cc

o 
ex

po
su

re
 

 
En

ga
gi

ng
 P

rim
ar

y 
Ca

re
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

ns
 a

nd
 F

ed
er

al
ly

 Q
ua

lif
ie

d 
He

al
th

 C
en

te
rs

 
W

or
ki

ng
 A

cr
os

s B
ou

nd
ar

ie
s t

o 
In

co
rp

or
at

e 
an

 E
qu

ity
 Le

ns
 to

 B
re

as
tfe

ed
in

g 
In

iti
at

iv
es

 
Su

cc
es

sf
ul

 M
od

el
s I

nt
eg

ra
tin

g 
M

at
er

na
l C

ar
e 

an
d 

Su
bs

ta
nc

e 
Us

e 
Tr

ea
tm

en
t 

 

174

Item 13.



Page 4 of 4 
 

 

175

Item 13.



 

 

 

COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 

MEETING DATE: September 29, 2020 

SUBMITTED BY: Natalie Randall, Director Economic Development and Visitor Services 

TITLE: San Juan Strong – Recreate Responsibly Avalanche MOU 

RECOMMENDATION: Approval of MOU with the Utah Avalanche Center 

 

SUMMARY 

In an effort to improve backcountry user safety the Utah Avalanche Center (UAC) and San Juan County – Utah’s Canyon Country have 
placed two signs at key trailheads that provide access to backcountry winter recreationalist in San Juan County. Users include skiers, 
snowmobilers, snowshoers, and etc. Both signs provide reminders to users that if they plan to enter avalanche terrain to check the 
advisory forecast, provided by UAC, and to carry avalanche gear. Additionally, the signs Dalton Spring sign includes electronics allowing 
users to test if their avalanches beacons are fully functional. The UAC is committed to the region in providing forecasts for both the La 
Sal’s and the Abajo’s through the creation of separate advisory forecasts for each range. Additionally, UAC provides training for new and 
veteran users in how to travel safely through avalanche terrain. The MOU states that San Juan County will support the project with an 
annual contribution of $500. The proposal is for these funds to come from the TRT percentage used for mitigating the impacts of 
visitation in an effort to support public safety. 

HISTORY/PAST ACTION 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

$500/year 

176

Item 14.



 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN 

SAN JUAN COUNTY 

AND 

UTAH AVALANCHE CENTER 

 

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), while not a legally binding document, indicates a voluntary agreement to assist in 

the implementation of the goals described in the San Juan County Avalanche Sign project. 

 

Overall Project Goals, Services and Outcomes:  In an effort to improve backcountry user safety the Utah Avalanche Center 

(UAC) and San Juan County – Utah’s Canyon Country have placed two signs at key trailheads that provide access to backcountry 

winter recreationalist in San Juan County. Users include skiers, snowmobilers, snowshoers, and etc. Both signs provide 

reminders to users that if they plan to enter avalanche terrain to check the advisory forecast, provided by UAC, and to carry 

avalanche gear. Additionally, the signs Dalton Spring sign includes electronics allowing users to test if their avalanches beacons 

are fully functional. The UAC is committed to the region in providing forecasts for both the La Sal’s and the Abajo’s through the 

creation of separate advisory forecasts for each range. Additionally, UAC provides training for new and veteran users in how to 

travel safely through avalanche terrain. 

 

Period & Renewal: Annual agreement for a 5-year period. Upon which, the MOU will be revisited. The 5-year period will start 

on the date of the last representation to sign. 

 

Roles and Responsibilities: San Juan County: 

 $500/year – covering the maintenance, installation, and upgrade costs for two avalanche signs 

o Dalton Spring Winter Trail Head – Abajo’s 

o Dark Canyon – La Sal’s 

 

Roles and Responsibilities: Partnering Agency: 

 Install & setup signs in the Winter 

 Maintain and repair signs annually 

 Check sign condition throughout the season 

 Remove signs in the Spring 

 Part replacement such as solar panels, batteries, and other electronics 

 

Termination: This MOU may be terminate by either party, for any reason, by providing 30 days’ written notice 

 

 

 

 

 

 

San Juan County Representation  Utah Avalanche Center Representation 
 
Signature: 

 
 

  
Signature: 

 

 
Printed Name: 

 
 

  
Printed Name: 

 

 
Title & Department: 

 
 

  
Title & Agency: 

 

 
Date: 

 
 

  
Date: 

 

177

Item 14.



 

 

 

5397 S Vine, Murray, UT  84107-6757  
Phone (801)565-8500  �  Fax 435-608-4531  �  ucip.utah.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
September 30, 2020 
 
 
 
Mack McDonald 
San Juan County Administrator 
PO Box 338 
Monticello, UT  84535 
 
RE: Annual Membership Meeting 
 
Dear Mack: 
 
The Utah Counties Indemnity Pool’s Annual Membership Meeting will be held at 5:00 p.m. on 
Thursday, November 19, 2020 at the Rib & Chop House in St. George.   
 
Pursuant to the Pool Bylaws, Article 4.7, Members shall have the obligation to: (b) Designate in 
writing a representative and one or more alternate representatives for the Membership Meetings.  
Each representative and alternate representative must be an elected or appointed officer or 
employee of a Member and must be appointed by majority vote of the governing body or by the 
county executive or county mayor of the Member to be the Member's official representative for the 
purposes of the Pool.  An alternate representative may exercise all the powers of a representative 
during a Membership Meeting, in the absence of the representative. 
 
Please have the San Juan County Governing Body appoint a representative and an alternate 
representative, who will attend the Membership Meeting on November 19, by adopting the 
attached resolution at the next Commission meeting.  Please fax/email the signed resolution to 
435-608-4531 or agetts@ucip.utah.gov no later than November 6, 2020. 
 
The UCIP Board of Directors request that you encourage the Commissioners to attend this 
meeting.  Register for the event on UCIP’s website: ucip.utah.gov. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Sonya White 
Chief Financial Officer

178

Item 15.



 
 

Resolution No. 2020-   
 
 
RESOLUTION OF APPOINTMENT OF A SAN JUAN COUNTY REPRESENTATIVE AND 
AN ALTERNATE REPRESENTATIVE FOR THE UTAH COUNTIES INDEMNITY POOL 

ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP MEETING 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Governing Body of San Juan County, Utah, is the proper authority to appoint 

a qualified person to act as the official representative for San Juan County at the Utah Counties 

Indemnity Pool Membership Meeting to be held on November 19, 2020; and  

WHEREAS, the Governing Body of San Juan County, Utah, has been informed that the By-

laws of the Utah Counties Indemnity Pool require that the official representative and an alternate 

representative for San Juan County must be an elected or appointed officer or employee of a Member 

and must be appointed by majority vote of the Governing Body of the Member to be the Member’s 

official representative for the purposes of the Pool 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that the Governing Body of San Juan County, Utah, hereby 

appoints       as the official San Juan County representative for the 

Utah Counties Indemnity Pool Membership Meeting to be held on November 19, 2020, with       

     as an alternate representative. 

 
RESOLVED ADOPTED AND ORDERED this    day of    , 2020. 

 
 

GOVERNING BODY 
SAN JUAN COUNTY, UTAH 

 
       

 
 

       
 
 

       
 
ATTEST:  
 
By:        
       
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
 
By:       

179

Item 15.



 1 

SAN JUAN COUNTY UTAH 
RESOLUTION NO 2020- ___ 

 
A RESOLUTION RECOMMENDING AND ENCOURAGING THE NAVAJO NATION TO ALLOW SAN 
JUAN COUNTY TO MAINTAIN ALL “B” ROADS IN THE SAN JUAN, UTAH PORTIONS OF THE 
NAVAJO NATION AND AMEND THE CURRENT INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT TO 
PERFORM MAINTENANCE OF THESE ROADS 
 
WHEREAS, on April 7, 2020, The Navajo Nation and San Juan County entered into in 
Intergovernmental Agreement whereby the Navajo Nation permitted the resumption of routine 
road maintenance, snow removal, and flood repair services by San Juan County Road 
Department for 74.1 miles of school bus routes in the Navajo Nation portion of San Juan 
County; and  
 
WHEREAS, we continue receive comments and complaints from the citizens requesting the 
County to resume maintaining the “B” roads in the Navajo Nation portion of San Juan County; 
and  
 
WHEREAS, the County desires to maintain these roads that are currently not being adequately 
maintained and would like to request that the Navajo Nation amend the Intergovernmental 
Agreement allowing the County the right-of-way and authority to maintain these routes; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County, upon amending the Intergovernmental Agreement, would request the 
road maintenance funds for those roads to the State of Utah, but requests similar funding from 
the Navajo Nation matching those road maintenance monies, similar to that which is done in 
other Counties within the Navajo Nation portions of Arizona and New Mexico; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County has met with several Chapters and has heard the pleas of both of our 
citizens and feels that time is of the essence; that we can commence maintenance work to 
preserve those asphalt, gravel and dirt surfaces needing repair before more costly damage and 
disrepair takes place; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED that the Board of San Juan County Commissioners  
PASSED, ADOPTED, AND APPROVED by the Board of San Juan County Commissioners this 6th 
day of October, 2020, by the following vote: 
 
Those voting aye:  
Those voting nay:  
Those absent or abstaining: 

BOARD OF SAN JUAN COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

_________________________________ 
Kenneth Maryboy, Chair 

ATTEST:  
 
_________________________________ 
John David Nielson, Clerk/Auditor 

#### 

180

Item 16.



SAN JUAN COUNTY COMMISSION 
Kenneth Maryboy               Chairman 

 Willie Grayeyes                  Vice-Chair 
Bruce Adams               Commissioner 
Mack McDonald          Administrator 

PO BOX 9   -   117 South Main Street   -   Monticello, Utah 84535-0009   -   435-587-3225   -   Fax 435-587-2447 

 

 

Commissioners: 

 

Last year, you had authorized the County to be a pass through for the preservation grant of $10,000 to the 

County Historic Commission to begin the first phase of the $20,000 post rehab of the Oljato Trading Post. 

Robert McPherson has continued to work on this project and has satisfied and met the terms of the grant award. 

Last year, he also requested additional funds to complete the preservation of the Oljato Trading Post. Due to 

budget constraints at the State level, funding was not received for the project.  

 

At this time, it has been asked that the County assist them in this effort by applying to the Utah Navajo Trust 

Fund for Non-Chapter Funding for the restoration project in a request for $35,000 to replace the roof on the 

Trading Post. In total, the re-roofing project will cost $50,000 based on estimates. The Utah Division of State 

History/State Historic Preservation Office has already earmarked $5,000 for this project through the National 

Trust for Historic Preservation. An additional $10,000 is being requested at this time from the National Trust 

for Historic Preservation to complete the amount needed to complete the roof replacement.  

 

As a reminder, this one hundred year old Trading Post was constructed in 1921 with additions in the 1930s and 

early 40s. The original structure has a rectangular trading hall with a shallow gable roof. It consists of a center 

“bull-pen” area for customers surrounded on three sides by an elevated floor for the clerks. Living quarters and 

storage areas are included in the additions. The walls are primarily double-wythe stacked native sandstone with 

adobe sections as well. The roof consists of rough-hewn logs over which is a later 1940s(?) roof structure 

consisting of a 2x4 grid overlaid with sheathing and roofing material. Most of the roofing material and some of 

the sheathing is missing, and what remains is in very poor condition (see photos). 

 

We are requesting your authorization and support as we submit an application requesting grant funds for the 

project.  

 

 

 

 
 

Mack McDonald 

Chief Administrative Officer 

181

Item 17.



 SLOPE SLOPE

 SLOPE SLOPE

 SLOPE  SLOPE

ROOF - PLAN

N

NTS

OLJATO TRADING POST

AE102

NEW ROOF OVERLAY

W/ GRAY TPO

MEMBRANE, TYP.

37'-7"

22'-6"

182

Item 17.



183

Item 17.



184

Item 17.



185

Item 17.



186

Item 17.



187

Item 17.



Page 1 of 5 
 

Oljato Trading Post Re-roofing Project 
(9-28-20) 

 
 
Project Summary 
 
This project will repair/replace the roof on the long-vacant 1921 Oljato Trading Post. 
The roof is in a very advanced state of deterioration, allowing water in at various locations, 
eroding the adobe and stone walls and compromising the structure.  
 
 
Applicant Information 
 
The San Juan County Commission is the applicant for UNTF Non-Chapter Funding to assist the 
Oljato Trading Post Restoration Project in Monument Valley.  The Commission is also in close 
contact with the Utah Division of State History/State Historic Preservation Office (SHPO) as well 
as the Navajo Nation (the building owner), and the Oljato Chapter (see attached resolutions). The 
SHPO recently applied for a $10,000 grant from the National Trust for Historic Preservation, a 
Washington, D.C., based nonprofit historic preservation organization. The SHPO is also 
contributing $5,000 toward the re-roofing project, and provided a $10,000 grant earlier in 2020 
for some much-needed stabilization and clean-up work on the building. 
 
 
Grant Request 
 
The grant request is for $35,000. The overall budget for the re-roofing project is $50,000, based 
on pro-bono structural assessments and estimates provided by the SHPO’s historic preservation 
architect. As noted above, the SHPO has applied for a $10,000 grant from the National Trust for 
Historic Preservation and has already earmarked $5,000 of its own funds toward the project. 
 
 

Project Description 
 
This one hundred year old was constructed in 1921 with additions in the 1930s and early '40s. 
The original structure has a rectangular trading hall with a shallow gable roof. It consists of a 
center "bull-pen" area for customers surrounded on three sides by an elevated floor for the 
clerks. Living quarters and storage areas are included in the additions. The walls are primarily 
double-wythe stacked native sandstone with adobe sections as well. The roof consists of rough-
hewn logs over which is a later 1940s(?) roof structure consisting of a 2x4 grid overlaid with 
sheathing and roofing material. Most of the roofing material and some of the sheathing is 
missing, and what remains is in very poor condition (see photos). 
 
 
Immediate Need 
 
The emergency is that the roof is in very poor condition and the numerous leaks threaten the 
integrity of the structure. The problem has been years in the making, but it has reached a point 

188

Item 17.



Page 2 of 5 
 

where the resulting damage is going to be irreversible. The fragile materials--stacked stone and 
adobe--are especially prone to water damage, as evidenced by some significant cracks in the 
walls and the large quantity of "melted" adobe and plaster that have sloughed off due to water 
penetration over the years. A three-day clean-up effort in March 2020 stabilized some of the 
most fragile areas and removed the accumulated debris caused by water erosion. That clean-up 
effort followed the recommendations made in a structural report prepared by the Utah SHPO's 
historical architect in the summer of 2019. That assessment deemed the building to still be 
structurally viable, but unless the roof could be repaired soon there would be significant 
structural failures. 
 
The Navajo Nation and Oljato Chapter own and are responsible for the building, but resources for 
preserving the building are scarce. The San Juan County Historical Commission has taken the 
lead in trying to raise funds and partnerships to preserve the building. They are coordinating 
closely with the Navajo Nation and they are taking advantage of grants and technical assistance 
from the SHPO. This partnership represents the first time a coordinated effort has been made on 
behalf of this historic building, which is one of the very few original trading posts left in the Four 
Corners area. The combination of an immediate structural need and an effective proponent 
partnership makes this the ideal time to act. Plus, winter is approaching, and getting a roof on 
now could prevent additional and potentially catastrophic water damage. 
 
The assistance needed at this time is entirely financial.  The SHPO has the architectural and 
technical expertise to help move this project forward. Getting a roof on the building would not 
only protect the structure, it would also demonstrate that progress is being made, which would 
strengthen support for the project. We saw that result during the March 2020 clean-up/ 
stabilization effort, as many residents of the Oljato community stopped by to see what was going 
on and to express their support. We even have institutional support from Utah State 
University/Eastern. Some two dozen students and staff from the university's Price and Blanding 
campuses volunteered three days of their time during spring break to help with the clean-up.  
The time spent amounted to the $10,000 match necessary for the grant. 
 
 
Expected Outcome 
 
The initial outcome will be a sound roof that can protect the historic trading post for many years 
to come. The longer-term outcome is that the building will be functional once again, serving as a 
community center and as a cultural tourism destination. The San Juan County Historical 
Commission has met with numerous individuals and stakeholder groups to come up with a plan 
for the building that will meet short- and long-term community needs, including economic 
development.  Contact for this organization/project is Robert McPherson, Board Member. The 
Oljato Trading Post is one of the few original and historically intact trading posts in the Four 
Corners area. It would provide a more authentic experience than is currently available in the 
larger, more commercially focused trading posts and tourist destinations.  
 
The Oljato Trading Post would provide a unique experience for visitors, both as a distinctive 
tourist destination and as a venue for showcasing local culture, art, and traditional crafts and 
products. It would also serve as a gathering place for the local community. This vision for the 

189

Item 17.



Page 3 of 5 
 

structure has been captured in a series of promotional drawings and sketches of what the facility 
could look like and how it might function (see attachments). 
 
 
Photographs 
 

 
Oljato Trading Post after March 2020 stabilization and clean-up 
 

 Roof condition-1 
 

190

Item 17.



Page 4 of 5 
 

  Roof condition-2 
 

 

191

Item 17.



Page 5 of 5 
 

Interior damage due to water infiltration and tree-root impacts. 
 

 
Architect’s rendering of the Oljato Trading Post’s future as a tourist destination and community 
center. The hogan at the lower left is one of the other historic structures on the property that will 
be preserved as part of the overall project. 
 

 
Front elevation. 

192

Item 17.


	Top
	1.	09-15-2020 Meeting Minutes
	September 15, 2020

	2.	August 2020 Check Registers
	20201001scan_20201001193725
	20200922scan_20200922215233

	3.	PPPHEA 2020 contract
	Commission Agenda Item-PPPHEA
	PPPHEA 2020 Public Health contract

	4.	EPICC amendment 5
	Commission Agenda Item-EPICC-5
	2019-2023 EPICC- San Juan Health Department Amendment 5

	5.	Local Health Dept WIC Program - San Juan Amendment 2 (2020)
	Commission Agenda Item-template (WIC)
	Local Health Dept WIC Program - Amendment 2

	6.	2020 Landfill Generator Purchase
	Landfull Generator Purchase
	Bill of Sale 2011 Kohler 40kW generator

	7.	2020 Icom Radio Purchase
	2960_001

	8.	Bluff River Trail
	ITEM-Staff-69640efa86b448eea0f1e3f5ad9420f5 (1)
	2961_001

	10.	Renaming Highways Request
	US-163_Update_2008
	Proposed Extension of U.S. 163
	US-164_Application_1969
	SR-666

	11.	2020 Appeal to the Appeal
	Petition for Redetermination
	20-1423 Valuation Form Petition for Redetermination.pdf
	20200925scan_20200925170222
	2020 Estimated Assessment
	Petition for Redetermination.pdf

	12.	2020 Road Vacation of D Roads in BFE
	Letter to San Juan County 9-17-2020 Signed
	Letter from San Juan County to Vacate Class D Roads 8-25-2020

	13.	MCH Block Grant - FY2021
	Commission Agenda Item-template (MCH)
	Maternal and Child Health FFY 2021

	14.	Utah Avalanche Center MOU
	2020-9-28_Commission Mtg_Utah Avalanche MOU
	2020-9-9_MOU SJC and Utah Avalanche Center(CAB)

	15.	2020 UCIP Attendance Approval
	San Juan Resolution

	16.	2020 Navajo Nation Road Request Resolution
	Navajo Nation Roads Request Resolution

	17.	Oljato Trading Post
	Oljato Trading Post Funding Support
	Oljato Roofing AREA A
	[Untitled]
	Full page2 photo
	Full page photo
	Oljato grant request and project description 9-28-20

	Bottom

